
 
April 19, 2021 

 
Memorandum from President Murdaugh  
 
 
The District Board of Trustees of 
Tallahassee Community College 
444 Appleyard Drive 
Tallahassee, FL  32304 

 
The following meeting Agenda and items requiring approval by the District 
Board of Trustees is provided for your use at the Monday, April 19, 2021 Board 
Meeting. 
 
The meeting will be held in the Student Union Ballroom on our Main Campus 
at 444 Appleyard Drive, Tallahassee, Florida. The public may also register to 
attend virtually at https://www.tcc.fl.edu/bot-meeting/2021/apr/  
 
 
Should you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 
 

 

  



Agenda 

District Board of Trustees 

Tallahassee Community College 

444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, FL  32308 

Monday, April 19, 2021 

Business Meeting & Workshop – 2:30 PM 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

            i.         Moment of Silence 

            ii.        Pledge of Allegiance  

COMMENTS 

            i.         Board Chair 

            ii.        Board Members  

            iii.       President  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. March 22, 2021 Meeting 

Request Board approve minutes as presented. 

INFORMATION AND NEWS ITEMS 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

PRESENTATIONS 

NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

The consent agenda format is an organization process for meetings that allow the governing board to focus their 

time and attention on action items that require more elaboration, information, and/or discussion.  The intent of the 

consent agenda is to support efficiency and effectiveness of the meeting. 

If a trustee has a question or plans to cast a negative vote regarding a specific recommendation, then the 

trustee/trustees need to acknowledge their intention to the Chair.  This action item will be considered in the 

regular order of business as an individual action item. 

Those action items that the trustees plan to approve without further question or discussion will remain on the 

consent agenda.  Upon the final determination of the consent agenda, a motion, second to the motion, and 

unanimous approval of the Board of Trustees is needed to approve the action items.  Upon approval of the 

consent agenda, the Board of Trustees will proceed with the remainder of the agenda. 

2. Human Resources Report 

Approve the report as presented. 

3. Attorney Invoice – Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. (February 2021) 

Authorize payment of invoice as presented. 

 



4. Sponsored Programs – Provider 

Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

TCC Foundation 

5. TCC Foundation Update 

None required.  Report provided for information only. 

Administrative Services 

6. Construction Status Report 

Presented as an information item only. 

7. Fund Analysis - March 

For information only, no Board action required. 

8. 2020-2021 Equity Report Update 

Approve the 2020-2021 Equity Report as presented. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

WORKSHOP 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

NEXT MEETING DATE 

May 17, 2021                               Location:  Main Campus 

ADJOURNMENT 

 



March 22, 2021  Page 1 of 3 

Minutes 
District Board of Trustees 

Tallahassee Community College 
444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, FL  32304 
March 22, 2021 

Business Meeting – 2:30 PM 

 
The March 2021 District Board of Trustees meeting was called to order by Chair Messersmith at 
approximately 2:30 p.m. 
 
Members Present:  Chair Messersmith, Trustees Callaway, Grant, Kilpatrick, Lamb and Pople 

Absent:  Trustee Moore  Via phone/Zoom:  None 
Others Present:  President Murdaugh, Candice Grause, Lenda Kling, Rob Hall, Don Herr, Kim Moore, Craig 
Knox, Kalynda Holton, Heather Mitchell, Nyla Davis, Alice Maxwell, Calandra Stringer, Anthony Jones, 
Sheri Rowland, Lei Wang, Gerald Jones, Donmetrie Clark, Gregory Williams, Trevoris McDaniel and Bobby 
Jones 
Via Zoom:  Bret Ingerman, Angela Long, Lauren Schoenberger, Byron Dobson, Brittany McCraw, Chip 
Singletary, Martin Balinsky, Amy Bradbury, Rick Jenks and Mike Robeck 
 
COMMENTS 

i.         Board Chair Messersmith asked everyone to stand for a moment of silence and the pledge of 
allegiance. He shared the Forensics Team won numerous awards this year at the state championship and  
the Nursing School Almanac changed our rating to Number 5 in Florida. 
ii.        Board Members – Trustee Grant said we were ranked Number 1 by Intelligent.com for our 
Associates programs. Trustee Kilpatrick stated the accolades that keep coming in during this trying time 
are amazing, thanking everyone. Trustee Callaway noticed how fresh and green everything looks on 
campus. Trustees Lamb and Pople concurred with everyone’s comments.  
iii.       President Murdaugh recognized the 70th anniversary of Municode. He reviewed how previous 
CARES and CRRSA Act funds could be used and shared information on the upcoming American Rescue 
Plan (ARP) funds, which now allows inclusion of non-credit programs. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. February 15, 2020 Meeting 
Request Board approve minutes as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Pople  SECOND: Trustee Kilpatrick 

  Motion passed unanimously.  
  
INFORMATION AND NEWS ITEMS   
Director Maxwell introduced media clips for the truck driving program, Cleaver and Cork event, 
Pathfinders program for veterans, the food pantry, etc. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of Consent Agenda 
  2. Human Resources Report 

Approve the report as presented. 



March 22, 2021  Page 2 of 3 

3. Architect Invoices 
 Authorize payment of architectural invoice as presented. 
4. Sponsored Programs – Provider 
 Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 
5. Sponsored Programs – Fiscal Agent 
 Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 
6. Attorney Invoice - January 
 Authorize payment of invoices as presented. 
MOTION: Trustee Lamb  SECOND: Trustee Callaway 

  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

TCC Foundation 
7. TCC Foundation Update 
VP Mitchell shared we are still tracking ahead of last year, including the net total assets. She 
stated all Cleaver and Cork events sold out this year, thanking Director Herr and Lt. Rabon for 
their support. She shared the Chef donated a private dinner for auction, which went for twenty-
five thousand dollars ($25,000). 

None required.  Report provided for information only. 
 

Administrative Services 
8. Construction Status Report 

Presented as an information item only. 
9. Fund Analysis – February 

For information only, no Board action required. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None  
 
WORKSHOP 
TCC Cares 
Reflect, Reset and Reimagine 

VP Moore stated during the pandemic we have focused on five (5) critical areas – health and safety 
protocols, operations, academic continuity, stakeholder engagement and student success and support. 
She highlighted numerous safety protocols in our phased approach, partnerships for employee COVID-19 
testing and vaccinations, a dashboard for COVID information with a weekly report of reported cases, etc. 
 
She shared for our students we embedded services into virtual classes, provided laptops and hotspots, 
funds for student housing costs, rapid credentialing training, the Jump Start program, the TCC2Work “Be 
Essential” campaign, the Support our Students campaign, increased success rates, among other things.  
 
VP Moore stated going forward we will listen to our students, look at student outcomes and make sure 
that we keep an eye on how the vaccine process is proceeding. She indicated we will install air sterilizers 
and purifiers in all campus restrooms, update HVAC, add ionization to our healthcare sites, provide more 
scholarships than previous year, allocate funds for mental health, begin opening services on campus, etc.  
 
Chair Messersmith said he believes TCC will be at the top when everyone evaluates what has been done 
here during the pandemic. He confirmed workforce programs would be included in the new funding, 
asking about the truck driving program. President Murdaugh shared he just approved the purchase of 
another semi-tractor and we have issued one thousand two hundred (1,200) industry certifications for 
inmates. He said we will take the lessons we have learned to be our next best self. 
 



March 22, 2021  Page 3 of 3 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
President Murdaugh reminded everyone of the President’s Leadership Institute lunch and reception 
Wednesday and the Aspen Institute virtual watch party with reception on May 18th in Turner Auditorium.  

 
NEXT MEETING DATE 

April 19, 2021  Location:  Main Campus 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  

Meeting adjourned at approximately 3:30 p.m.   
 
 
 
Minutes approved at the regular meeting of the District Board of Trustees on April 19, 2021. 
 
 
            
Frank Messersmith    Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
Chair      President 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

April 19, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Human Resources Report 

 

 
Item Description 
This item requests Board approval for personnel actions. 
 
Overview and Background 
Pursuant to College Policy 04-06 and 04-17, the College brings forth a request to approve 
appointments, separations and outside employment.  
 
Past Actions by the Board 
Personnel actions are taken to the District Board of Trustees monthly.  The Board has not 
addressed this item previously. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
This item is funded by the 2020-2021 Operating Budget. 
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the report as presented. 

 



Name Department Effective Date

None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date

Fabiola Garcia Center Manager, Gadsden March 1, 2021

Robin Colson Program Coordinator, Online Training March 15, 2021

Eric West Student Support Specialist

Workforce Development
Workforce Development 
Admissions and Records March 24, 2021

Name Position Department Effective Date

None to Report

Name Position Department Effective Date

Kathryn Corder English Language Arts Content Specialist DOE Test Development Center March 1, 2021

Marilyn Fairley Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Central FL Center March 1, 2021

Maria Jordan Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Jackson C.I. March 1, 2021

Brooke Kurzen Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Sago Palm C.I. March 8, 2021

Marilyn Reed Career Development Specialist Compass 100 DOC Avon Park C.I. March 15, 2021

Name Position Department Effective Date Prior Position

Pamela Johnston Dean, Career and Academic Planning Student Affairs April 1, 2021 Director of Student Services

Name Position Department Enrollment Date End Period 

Margaret Thompson Institutional Research & Planning, Director Institutional Effectiveness April 1, 2021 March 31, 2026

Name Position Department Effective Date Separation Type

Courtney Kelly Facilities Office Manager FPSI February 26, 2021 Resigned

Saeed Torof Computer Systems Analyst Information Technology February 28, 2021 Retired

Alada De Nobrega Call Center Representative Call Center March 2, 2021 Resigned

Ronterrious Smith Custodial Worker Custodial March 5, 2021 Dismissed

Travis Jordan CTE Outreach & Recruitment, Director Workforce Development March 15, 2021 Resigned

Maranda Lee Career and Academic Advisor Student Advising March 23, 2021 Dismissed

Craig Nordskog Career Development Specialist Grant March 26, 2021 Resigned

Debbie Smith Information Technology Support Specialist II Information Technology March 26, 2021 Retired

Diane Staubitz Supervisor Landscape Services Facilities Operations March 26, 2021 Dismissed

Drop Retiree Participants (All Employees) 

Separations (All Employees) 

Original Appointments - Executive, Administrative, Managerial & Professional 

Original Appointments - Classified Staff

Original Appointments - Faculty 

Original Appointments -  Contracts & Grants 

Re-Appointments (All Employees)



Name Position Department Employer Position

Heather Hamlin Program Director Healthcare Professions Marianna Smile Labs Owner

Traci Wright Career Development Specialist Grant Covenant Cleaning Cleaner

Name Position Department Office Position

None to Report

Outside Employment Requests (All Employees) 

Seeking to Hold Political Office Requests (All Employees)



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

April 19, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Attorney Invoice – Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. ( February 2021) 

 

 
Item Description 
Request for approval to pay invoice from Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for legal services provided 
related to the collective bargaining process.  
  
Overview and Background 
The College engaged Bryant Miller Olive, P.A. for representation during the collective 
bargaining process. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The Board of Trustees approved the agreement for these services at the September 19, 2016 
Board meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
Funding is budgeted in Fund 1, the Current Unrestricted Fund.  The current amount due is 
$4175.00 for February 2021. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize payment of invoice as presented. 

 
 



Tallahassee Community College
Barbara K. Wills, Chief Business Officer, Vice President for 
Administrative Services
444 Appleyard Drive
Tallahassee, Florida  32304

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

March 5, 2021
74451

25480.006

For professional services rendered in connection with Tallahassee 
Community  College - Labor and Employment - UFF Bargaining

Purchase Order No. PO-012617

Statement of Legal Services

Hours

02/01/2021 JCC Review legislative proposals / retirement 0.50

02/10/2021 JCC Review documents / UFF 0.60

02/10/2021 JCC Conference call with client (President Murdaugh, C. Grause) / UFF 
bargaining

0.70

02/10/2021 DMH Conference with client / bargaining 0.60 No Charge

02/17/2021 JCC Review correspondence / compensation 0.30

02/17/2021 JCC Review UFF agreement 0.40

02/18/2021 JCC Analyze compensation issues 1.20

02/19/2021 JCC Analyze impact bargaining issues 0.90

02/22/2021 JCC Review draft language 0.80

02/22/2021 JCC Preparation for team meeting 0.90

02/22/2021 DMH Review proposals and draft email 0.60

02/22/2021 DMH Attend Zoom conference / bargaining 0.70

02/23/2021 JCC Review correspondence / wages 0.80

02/23/2021 JCC Evaluate compensation issues 0.80

02/24/2021 JCC Review and analyze, draft compensation language 1.80

02/24/2021 JCC Review UFF proposals 1.00

02/24/2021 DMH Analyze and review proposals 1.30

02/25/2021 JCC Conference with client (J. Murdaugh, C. Grause, Bargaining Team) / 
negotiations

1.00

02/25/2021 JCC Review revised College proposals 0.60



02/25/2021 DMH Review Union proposals 0.40

02/25/2021 DMH Attend conference with client about bargaining 1.00 No Charge

02/26/2021 JCC Conference call with client (C. Grause, bargaining team) / 
negotiations

0.50

02/26/2021 JCC Attend negotiations 0.40

02/26/2021 JCC Review correspondence / healthcare faculty 0.20

02/26/2021 DMH Attend Zoom conference with client (x2) 0.90 No Charge

02/26/2021 DMH Attend Zoom bargaining 0.30

Current Services 16.70 $4,175.00

Recapitulation

Timekeeper Hours Rate Total

James C. Crosland 13.40 $250.00 $3,350.00

Denise M. Heekin 3.30 $250.00 $825.00

Total Current Work $4,175.00

Previous Balance Due $1,350.00

Balance Due $5,525.00

Please Reference Client Number On Checks And Wire Transfers

Mail Checks to:
1545 Raymond Diehl Road, Suite 300

Tallahassee, FL  32308
850-222-8611           FEIN 59-1315801

Send wire transfers to Capital City Bank, ABA #063100688
for credit to Bryant Miller Olive, Account #2132834901

Thank you for your business

Page: 2

Invoice Date:
Invoice No.

Client No.

March 05, 2021
74451

25480.006
Tallahassee Community College



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

April 19, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Sponsored Programs – Provider 

 

 
Item Description 
This item requests that the Board approve the receipt of funding for the listed projects. 
 
Overview and Background 
The following are recommended for approval. 
 
I. Receipt, Amendment, Extension of Resources  
 
Florida Department of Education – Test Development Center - Amendment 1 
This amendment reallocates funds for additional Content Specialist.  The award amount 
remains the same. 
 
Office of the Florida Attorney General – Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) Grant - Amendment 1 
This amendment increases funding by $18,918.  This was an automatic increase based on 
additional allocation. A budget amendment to allocate the funds will be completed in the 
future. The new award total is $70,747 with an indirect cost rate of 0%. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Rapid Credentialing - Amendment 3 & 4 
This amendment is to reallocate funds for the purchase of computers.  The award amount 
remains the same. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 
21st Century Act CTE, Entrepreneurship Education & Training (EET) – Amendments1 & 2 
This amendment reallocates funds for material and supplies, and other services.  The 
award amount remains the same.  No-cost extension has been awarded through 8/31/21. 
 
 
 



Florida Department of Education –English Literacy/Civics Education for Gadsden County - 
Amendment 1 
This amendment is for a no-cost extension through 8/31/21. The award amount remains the 
same. 
 
Florida Department of Education –English Literacy/Civics Education for Leon County - 
Amendment 1 
This amendment is for a no-cost extension through 8/31/21. The award amount remains the 
same. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Adult Education and Family Literacy, Adult General 
Education for Wakulla County - Amendment 1 
This amendment is for a no-cost extension through 8/31/21. The award amount remains the 
same. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Adult Education and Family Literacy, Adult General 
Education for Gadsden County - Amendment 1 
This amendment is for a no-cost extension through 8/31/21. The award amount remains the 
same. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Carl D. Perkins Postsecondary Vocational Education 
Program  - Amendment 2 & 3 
This amendment is to request the roll over funds of $20,235 to be add to the current award 
with no indirect cost. Reallocated budget for student certification exams, materials and 
supplies and equipment. No-cost extension through 8/31/21. The total amount of this award 
is $349,751. 
 
Florida Department of Education - 2020-2025 Support for Implementation and Maintenance 
of Charter Schools Federal (Administrative) 
This award provides support to the Florida Department of Education by facilitating the 
contractual and professional services for the Department aimed at enhancing the 
leadership at new charter schools and at charter school authorizers throughout Florida, 
among other activities.  The award is for $123,058 with an indirect cost rate of 8%. The 
funding period is from 1/15/21 through 9/30/25.  
 
Florida Department of Education - 2020-2025 Support for Implementation and Maintenance 
of Charter Schools Federal (Technical Assistance) 
This award provides technical support to the Florida Department of Education by facilitating 
the contractual and professional services for the Department aimed at enhancing the 
leadership at new charter schools and at charter school authorizers throughout Florida, 
among other activities.  The award is for $797,621 with a modified total indirect cost rate of 
8%. The funding period is from 1/15/21 through 9/30/25. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Pathways to Career Opportunities Phase 3 
This award provides electrical pre-apprenticeship program at Gadsden Re-Entry Center 
(GRE) with a partnership with the West Coast Chapter of Independent Electrical 
Contractors (IEC) that aligns with 750 clock hour DOE Electrical Career Certificate Program 
offered by TCC at GRE.  The award amount is $114,386 with an indirect cost rate of 0%. 
The funding period is from 1/4/21 through 6/30/2021. 
 
 



Achieving the Dream - Strengthening Students' Education to Employment Journey through 
Regional Professional Learning Communities.  
This award provides funding to convene partners from K-12, community college, and 
workforce to create/align locally relevant academic/career pathways. The award amount is 
$20,000 with an indirect cost rate of 0%. The funding period is 1/25/21 through 7/31/2022. 
 
City of Tallahassee - CHSP - ASPIRE Capital Region 20-21 Accelerating Student 
Performance Into Realms of Excellence (ASPIRE) 
This award provides support for the collective impact approach to leverage and align 
stakeholders to improve educational access and equity. The award amount is $20,000 with 
an indirect cost rate of 0%.  The funding period is from 10/1/20 through 9/30/21. 
 
City of Tallahassee – CHSP – Take Stock in Children 
This award provides additional support the Take Stock in Children activities within Leon 
County. The award amount is $15,000 with an indirect cost rate of 0%.  The funding period 
is from 10/1/20 through 9/30/21. 
 
 
II. Commitments, Expenditures, Contracts for Service 
None at this time. 
 

 
Past Actions by the Board 
Florida Department of Education – Test Development Center  
The initial award was approved at the August 2020 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Office of the Florida Attorney General – Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) Grant  
The initial award was approved at the January 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education - Rapid Credentialing  
Amendment 2 was approved at the February 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 

 
Florida Department of Education - Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st 
Century Act CTE, Entrepreneurship Education & Training (EET)  
The initial award was approved at the March 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education – English Literacy/Civics Education for Gadsden County  
The initial award was approved at the October 2020 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education – English Literacy/Civics Education for Leon County  
The initial award was approved at the October 2020 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Adult Education and Family Literacy, Adult General 
Education for Gadsden County  
The initial award was approved at the September 2020 Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Florida Department of Education – Adult Education and Family Literacy, Adult General 
Education for Wakulla County  
The initial award was approved at the September 2020 Board of Trustees meeting. 

 



Florida Department of Education – Carl D. Perkins Postsecondary Vocational Education 
Program 
Amendment 1 was approved at the March 2021 Board of Trustees meeting. 

 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The above projects are established in Fund 2, Restricted Accounts. The total indirect 
anticipated from the new awards is $22,405.00. 
 
Recommended Action 
Authorize funding for the awards and contracts as presented. 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

April 19, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Heather Mitchell                                                                                                                         
Vice President for Institutional Advancement and Executive Director of the TCC 
Foundation 

   

SUBJECT: TCC Foundation Update 

 

 
Item Description 
The following is an update of the events planned and initiatives & activities undertaken by the 
TCC Foundation. 
 
Overview and Background 
Attached is a report of funds raised by the TCC Foundation to date for the current fiscal year.  
The report includes a summary of total funds received, giving summary by designated area, 
number of donors and number of gifts. 
 
The Foundation would also like to extend an invitation to DBOT members to the following 
events: 
April 20:  Jean Hurst Courtyard Naming, Hinson Admin Building, 2:00 – 2:30 p.m. 
April 20:  Hurst Gallery Unveiling, FPAC, 5:30 – 7:00 p.m. 
April 22:  Blue & Gold Society Awards Luncheon, Student Union Ballroom, 12:00 – 1:00 p.m. 
April 29:  TCC Retiree Luncheon, Ghazvini, 11:30 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. 
May 14:  Eagle Legacy Society Luncheon, Governors Club, 12:00 – 1:00 p.m. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
The District Board of Trustees receives a Foundation update at every Board Meeting. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
There are no Funding/Financial implications arising from this standard monthly report. 
 
Recommended Action 
None required.  Report provided for information only. 

 



TCC Foundation - Financial Update FY 20/21

 July - March



TCC Foundation - Funds Spent

FY 20/21



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

April 19, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: Construction Status Report 

 

 
Item Description 
This item describes the status of various construction, renovation, remodeling and site 
improvement projects at all TCC locations for the Board of Trustees. 
 
Overview and Background 
The attached Construction Status report details the noteworthy construction and renovation 
projects being undertaken to support the educational mission of the College. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
None. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
All construction and renovation projects are funded prior to approval, with most being funded 
from capital improvement fees. 
 
Recommended Action 
Presented as an information item only. 
 

 



CONSTRUCTION STATUS REPORT – AS OF APRIL 2021 
 
 
MAIN CAMPUS (SITE 1) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – AC 212 

25% TBD Underway 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – AC 219 

25% TBD Underway 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – AC 220 

25% TBD Underway 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – AP 149 

25% TBD Underway 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – SM 119 

25% TBD Underway 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – CT 107 

100% TBD Complete 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – HSS 110 

100% TBD Complete 

Foundation Classroom 
Renovation – HSS 259 

100% TBD Complete 

Facilities Room 
Renovation – TPP 211 

10% TBD Underway 

AMTC Welding Lab 15% TBD Work has commenced 

FPAC Dressing Rooms 100% TBD Complete 

FPAC Roof Replacement 60% TBD Finishing wall panels 

Sidewalk Repairs, 
Elimination of Trip Hazards 

Continuous On-going 
Ground 1,235 Trip Hazards and Replaced 
25 sections of Sidewalk 

SUSTAINABILITY % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

Hydration Stations Continuous On-going 
Prevented 157,648 Plastic Bottles from 
going to landfills 

Recycled Plastic 
Lumber/Furniture 

Continuous On-going 
Prevented 1,567,000 Plastic Bags from 
going to landfills 

GADSDEN SERVICE CENTER (SITE 2) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

None to report    

FLORIDA PUBLIC SAFETY INSTITUTE (SITE 3) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

None to report    



Page 2 

 

 
CENTER FOR INNOVATION (SITE 4) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

CFI Elevator 100% TBD Complete 

GHAZVINI CENTER FOR HEALTHCARE EDUCATION (SITE 5) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

None to report    

WAKULLA ENVIRONMENTAL INSTITUTE (SITE 6) 

TASK % COMPLETE DUE DATE NOTES 

None to report    

 

FOUNDATION CLASSROOM RENOVATION SUMMARY 

Renovated Classroom(s) Cost to Date 

SM 128 - Classroom Renovations $          32,868.84           

SM 137 - Classroom Renovations $          29,119.77    

CT 107 - Classroom Renovations $          16,654.86 

HSS 110 - Classroom Renovations $          14,955.09 

HSS 259 - Classroom Renovations $          21,157.43 

AC 212 - Classroom Renovations $            6,972.00 

AC 219 - Classroom Renovations $            7,407.00 

AC 220 - Classroom Renovations $            7,971.00 

AP 149 - Classroom Renovations $            6,936.00 

SM 119 - Classroom Renovations $            6,717.90 

 



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

April 19, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

 ______________________ 

SUBJECT: Fund Analysis - March 

 

 
Item Description 
This item is to provide the Board a summary of the College’s operating revenues and 
expenses as of 3/30/2021 
 
Overview and Background 
As directed in the Florida Public Community College Accounting Manual, revenues from state 
appropriations, student tuition and fees, interest earned, and other contributions are recorded 
and monitored in the College’s operating fund (fund 1).  Expenditures for direct instruction 
expenses are also recorded in the operating fund. 
 
In accordance with Florida Statutes (1011.01), the Board of Trustees must approve the 
College’s operating fund budget each fiscal year. The College monitors the operating fund 
activity to ensure approved budget limits are maintained. Additionally, the Board has 
requested a report of all purchases over $100,000, but less than $325,000. The report for the 
month of March is attached to this item. 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
For information only, no Board action required. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
The College continues to be in sound financial condition. 
 
Recommended Action 
For information only, no Board action required. 

 



REVENUE March Month YTD YTD Annual % of YTD 
Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget Budget

Student Fees 828,301$               2,053,219$            22,251,256$          18,478,970$          24,638,626$          90%
State Support 2,232,287$            2,797,583$            20,709,228$          25,178,246$          33,570,994$          62%
Federal Support 712,742$               40,833$                 1,113,373$            367,500$               490,000$               227%
Other Revenue 155,700$               210,833$               2,398,100$            1,897,500$            2,530,000$            95%
Non-Revenue Sources -$                       115,286$               -$                       1,037,573$            1,383,431$            0%

TOTAL REVENUE 3,929,029$            5,217,754$            46,471,958$          46,959,788$          62,613,051$          74%

EXPENSES March Month YTD YTD Annual % of YTD 
Actual Budget Actual Budget Budget Expenses

PERSONNEL COSTS
Administrative 263,617$               277,903$               2,459,939$            2,501,128$            3,334,838$            74%
Instructional 956,921$               1,053,712$            8,791,989$            9,483,408$            12,644,544$          70%
Non-Instructional 1,263,061$            1,467,835$            11,465,823$          13,210,511$          17,614,014$          65%
OPS 556,584$               436,607$               4,203,560$            3,929,464$            5,239,286$            80%
Personnel Benefits 808,691$               877,531$               7,375,893$            7,897,777$            10,530,369$          70%

TOTAL PERSONNEL COSTS 3,848,875$            4,113,588$            34,297,204$          37,022,288$          49,363,051$          69%

CURRENT EXPENSES
Services 247,387$               339,089$               2,452,796$            3,051,803$            4,069,070$            60%
Material & Supplies 41,584$                 195,744$               1,258,280$            1,761,700$            2,348,933$            54%
Other Current Charges 878,687$               548,500$               5,776,272$            4,936,498$            6,581,997$            88%

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENSES 1,167,658$            1,083,333$            9,487,349$            9,750,000$            13,000,000$          73%

CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                       20,833$                 -$                       187,500$               250,000$               0%

TOTAL EXPENSES 5,016,532$            5,217,754$            43,784,552$          46,959,788$          62,613,051$          70%

Tallahassee Community College Fund Analysis
Unrestricted Current Fund

As of March 30, 2021



Purchase 
Order

Purchase 
Order Date Supplier

Total PO 
Amount Description Approval/Exemption

PO-013431 3/9/2021 Trane U.S. Inc. 120,465.00 Compressor inspection and mainenance 
program for Main Campus chiller.

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 
commodities available only from a single or sole 
source.

PO-013448 3/11/2021 The Lincoln Electric 
Company 193,527.00 Welding booths and fume control 

systems for TCC welding labs.
Ref: Guaranteed maximum price (GMP) TCC welding 
labs project. EDA Grant No. 04-79-07370

PO-013457 3/16/2021 Tampa Bay Rays Baseball 
Ltd. 175,000.00

Advertising and promotional benefits with 
Sunburst Entertainment Group LLC dba 
Tampa Bay Rays Baseball Ltd.

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 
commodities available only from a single or sole 
source.

PO-013463 3/23/2021 Building Hope Services, 
LLC 175,000.00

Support, training and technical services 
provided for the Florida Charter Support 
Unit (CSU) under the Charter Schools 
Program grant.

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734 (2) f. Professional 
services, including, but not limited to, artistic services, 
instructional services, health services, academic 
program reviews, lectures by individuals, attorneys, 
legal services, auditors, and management consultants.

PO-013466 3/24/2021 Miami Dolphins Ltd. 175,000.00 Advertising and promotional benefits with 
Miami Dolphins Ltd.

Exempt per FAC 6A-14.0734(2)(e) - Services or 
commodities available only from a single or sole 
source.

Issued in March 2021

Purchase Orders from $100,000 to $324,999 +



444 Appleyard Drive 

Tallahassee, Florida 32304-2895 

 850.2016200  www.tcc.fl.edu 

 

April 19, 2021 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 

TO: Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D. 
President 

FROM: Barbara Wills, Ph.D.                                                                                                                    
Vice President for Administrative Services and Chief Business Officer 

   

SUBJECT: 2020-2021 Equity Report Update 

 

 
Item Description 
Tallahassee Community College submits an annual Equity Report to the state to update and 
provide a status of the College’s Educational Equity Plan which documents efforts to comply 
with state and federal civil rights laws related to nondiscrimination and equal access to 
postsecondary education and employment. 
 
Overview and Background 
Each year Tallahassee Community College is required to submit an annual Equity Report 
Update to the Florida Department of Education.  This equity report contains the status of the 
College’s policies and procedures related to equity, and their resulting effects and outcomes.  
The Division of Administrative Services coordinates the completion of the annual equity report 
but has the support of the Division of Academic Affairs, Students Affairs, Institutional 
Effectiveness, and the TCC Athletics Department.  This year, the Annual Equity Report was 
due to the State of Florida on April 30, 2021. 
 
Funding/ Financial Implications  
N/A 
 
Past Actions by the Board 
TCC’s Annual Equity Report for 2019-2020 was approved by this Board on May 18, 2020.  
 
Recommended Action 
Approve the 2020-2021 Equity Report as presented. 
 

 



Tallahassee Community College 
2020-2021 Equity Update 

Executive Summary 
 

Tallahassee Community College (TCC or the College) submits an equity update report 
to the State of Florida each year. The 2020-2021 Annual Equity Update will be adopted by the 
Board of Trustees on April 19, 2021, having been signed by the Board Chair and the College’s 
President. This report provides updates on the College’s efforts to comply with Florida Statues 
related to nondiscrimination and equal access to postsecondary education and employment.  
Updates, observations and planned strategies are addressed for the following equity categories: 
(1) Employment Equity, (2) Student Participation, and (3) Gender Equity in Athletics. The Florida 
Department of Education (FLDOE) provided three years of data (2017-2018, 2018-2019 and 
2019-2020) for each area. All racial/ethnic category labels reported here are those supplied by 
FLDOE. This summary highlights findings and strategies from the report. 

 
Employment Equity 

Following the Department of Education, Florida College System’s guidance the College 
initiates employment goals each year for the areas of  Executive/Administrative/ Managerial 
(EAM) Staff, Instructional Staff, and Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract utilizing the 
College’s student population as its benchmark for employment representation. 
 

Executive/Administrative/Managerial (EAM) Staff: 
The College met its goals for all EAM categories by coming within ten percentage points 

of the student population.  
 

Instructional Staff: 
The College met its goals within the Full-Time Instructional Staff categories except for 

Total Male faculty representation.  Total Male faculty representation in this category was missed 
by .2% of a percentage point.  Recognizing that there is an increased need for male faculty, the 
College will pivot its recruitment focus to target male job seekers.   
 

Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract: 
The College met its goals within the Full-Time Instructional Staff with Continuing 

Contract categories except for Black Female faculty representation.  Black Female faculty 
representation in this category was missed by .2% of a percentage point.  The College will 
maintain its current support for Annual Contract faculty seeking to become Continuing Contract 
faculty. This support includes, but is not limited to, the New Faculty Seminar Program and 
training requirements presented through the College’s Center for Professional Enrichment.                                                                             

   
Student Participation 

Three areas of “student participation” are addressed in the report: Enrollments, 
Completions, and Success in Targeted Programs.  Findings and strategies are listed below by 
area: 

 
Enrollments –TCC experienced declines in 2019-2020 for both overall (-2.3%) and FTIC (-1%) 
enrollments that have impacted our ability to meet student enrollment goals.  We did see 
modest gains in Black FTIC Enrollment (1.1%) and Black Total Enrollment (.5%), but not within 
the Black Male students in either category.  Overall, we had a -5.4% decrease in Male FTIC 
students for 2019-2020, which impacted meeting our intended goals.   
 

Goal Highlights: 
While the College met its goal to reduce the enrollment percentage gap between Black 

Male FTIC and Black Male Total Enrollment by 1%, it did not meet its goal to reduce the 
enrollment percentage gap between Black Female and Black Male Total Enrollment; this gap 
increased by 1.1%.  Total Enrollment for Hispanic students remained flat.  No disproportionate 



enrollment rates were identified when the enrollments of Hispanic Males were compared to 
enrollment of Hispanic Females.  The College will continue to focus on decreasing the gap 
between Black Female and Black Male Total Enrollment and increasing Hispanic Total 
Enrollment.  

 
Methods and Strategies: 
Existing methods and strategies to increase student enrollment in underrepresented 

areas include the following: (1) The College continues to support and a wide variety of 
recruitment and enrollment strategies to address our equity goals, including but not limited to 
our TRIO and Take Stock In Children Grants, elementary and middle school outreach in the 
32304 zip code (e.g., Reading Pals at Riley Elementary, Career Discovery Program (STEM 
Focus) at Griffin Middle School, and increased opportunities for college success and career 
exploration at Godby High School through dual enrollment.  (2) TCC also offered its first 
Summer Jump Start program in 2020.  This program was an opportunity for rising juniors or 
seniors in high school in our tri-county area to dual enroll for the first time during the June 
Express session without the mandatory placement score requirement.  The student completed 
the Super Strong inventory to develop a career pathway based on the student’s strengths, 
interests, and values.  The criteria for this program was a 3.0 GPA.  The students received 6 
credit hours in preselected courses via TCC LIVE.  This program had a 91% pass rate, and 
continued for the Fall 2020 semester as well.  (Summer – 93 students; Fall 219 students). 
(3)TCC launched The Summer Scholar Program for newly graduated seniors in our tri-county 
areas who planned to attend TCC as freshmen in the  fall.  These students received up to 6 
credit hours FREE via TCC Live, synchronous learning, during our June Express semester, 
which began June 23 and ran through August 5th.  They also received a book stipend through 
our TCC Bookstore for these courses.   (107 students) (4) TCC continues to grow its Eagle 
RISE Summer Academy program.  To help them achieve a successful transition to college, the 
summer bridge program is aimed to connect low-income, minority and first generation students 
with faculty, staff, and resources across TCC’s campus.  Selected participants receive 
scholarships for 6 hours of college level credit, free textbooks, and many other benefits upon 
continued enrollment at the college.  (5) TCC has signed an enhanced memorandum of 
understanding with Florida A & M University to strengthen our TCC2FAMU program and 
increase enrollment of black students.   
 

Due to the pandemic TCC has pivoted to offering more virtual campus tours, virtual 
information sessions on admissions and financial aid, and offered Zoom information sessions in 
local high school classrooms.  We have also restructured our Admissions & Records team to 
have Admissions Navigators who proactively work with each applicant to the college, helping 
them resolve any holds and questions related to their admission to the college. We will continue 
to monitor our existing strategies as we move forward to determine impact on closing our equity 
gaps. 

 
Completions - Completion is defined as the percentage of annual graduates represented by 
students in each racial/ethnic and gender category.   

 
Goal Highlights: 
A.A. Degrees - While the number of Black students completing A.A. degrees increased 

during this review period, the overall percentage of Black students completing A.A. degrees 
remained flat.  The College’s goal in this area to increase the percentage of Black students 
completing A.A. degrees was not met.  The College did meet its goal for Male students 
completing A.A. degrees by increasing this completion rate by 2.5%.  The College will continue 
to focus on Black student A.A. degree completion. 

 
A.S. Degrees – The College did not meet its goal of increasing the percentage of Black 

Male students who complete A.S. degrees; Black Male students who completed A.S. degrees 
decreased by .8%.  The College did not meet its goal of increasing the percentage of Black 



Female students who complete A.S. degrees by 1%; however, the College made good progress 
as the percentage of Black Female students who completed A.S. degrees increased by .8%.  

 
Certificate Programs – In response to a drop in the number of certificate programs 

completed by Black students, the College established a new goal to increase the number of 
Black students who complete Certificate Programs by 1%. 

 
While the College has not achieved ALL completion goals, we have seen success in 

increasing the number of Black Male students earning A.A. degrees by .2%.  The College also 
saw success in increasing the number of Black Female students receiving A.S. degrees and 
Certificate Programs by .8% and 2.3%, respectively.  

 
The College will continue to focus its efforts on increasing the percentage of Black 

student completion of A.A. degrees, A.S. degrees and certificate programs as detailed in the 
2020-2021 Equity Report.  

 
Methods and Strategies: 
(1) TCC continues to evaluate, design and refine its student experience aligned to its 

CARE model (Connections, Academics, Resources, and Engagement) and Guided Pathways. 
New students complete a career assessment prior to registering for their first semester of 
courses and each meta-major has a recommended course selection based on their area of 
interest.  Working in collaboration with FSU and FAMU, academic maps have been designed 
specific for TCC students.  Our university partners continue to offer advising services on our 
campus to students in the TCC2FSU and TCC2FAMU program and we are now engaged in 
more data sharing between the institutions to further provide support to students who wish to 
transfer.  (2) During the 19-20 academic year, minoritized students benefited from academic 
and holistic support through the participation in the Black Male Achievers and Sister 2 Sister 
Alliance.  Students engaged in small group activities, alliance meetings, as well as community 
service to obtain a sense of belonging. Membership highlights included: presented at the Black, 
Brown, and College Bound National Conference, hosted a leadership symposium, and received 
mentoring from faculty. One hundred and five students (105) participated and achieved an 83% 
fall to spring retention rate. (3) TCC continues to support student needs outside the classroom 
through Talon’s Market, our Case Manger position, Eagle Relief Fund, and mental health 
services. (4)  Math Champions continues to provide peer-to-peer support to students in 
Gateway math courses.   

 
New strategies to help improve completion rates include the following: (1)The College 

has hired a team of Academic Success Coaches assigned to our first time in college students to 
proactively connect and nudge students throughout their first year on successful student 
behaviors; (2) additional resources such as Study Edge and college learning support staff have 
been embedded into courses.  These academic support services are provided directly within the 
classroom offering just-in-time interaction to staff and resources; (3) all students have been 
assigned to a Career and Academic Adviser; and (4) the College has a renewed emphasis on 
CTE and short-term credentials aligned to current job market demands. 

 
Success in Targeted Programs 

The College offers several programs that are geared towards increasing participation of 
students in programs and courses in which students have been traditionally underrepresented, 
including, but not limited to, mathematics, science, computer technology, electronics, 
communications technology, engineering and career education, as required under §1000.05, 
F.S.  The programs include:  Florida Georgia Louis Stokes Alliance for Minority Participation 
(FGLSAMP), National Science Foundation (NSF) S-STEM, Sister 2 Sister, and Black Male 
Achievers.  Each program provides strategies to increase participation for underrepresented 
students and is outlined in detail in the 2020-2021 Equity Report. 

 



Gender Equity in Athletics  
The College continues its commitment to provide equal opportunities to its male and 

female student-athletes. Eight sports are currently offered: men’s and women’s basketball, 
baseball, softball, men's and women’s cross country, and men's and women's track (indoor and 
outdoor). Volleyball is still under consideration for addition to our athletic offerings.  

 
The College did not meet its goal for gender equity in athletics for this review 

period.  This was due, in part, to the COVID-19 pandemic shutting down the spring sports 
season.  The College will participate in both a virtual recruitment event this spring, as well as a 
recruitment event in concert with FSU XC Invitational or FHSAA Championships.  The NJCAA 
also recently announced women’s flag football as an emerging sport. 

 
All participants, regardless of gender, have access to comparable scholarships and like 

resources and facilities, in all aspects: housing, travel accommodations, coaches, support staff, 
and equipment and supplies. Academic support resources are also available to participants 
from all teams. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Division of Florida Colleges 
325 W. Gaines Street, Suite 1244 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400 

FCSInfo@fldoe.org 
850-245-0407 

 

 
 
 

 

 
Tallahassee Community College 

 

 

College Annual Equity Update 

2020-2021 

Template for Submission 

 
Deadline: April 30, 2021 

 
 
 
 
Submission Information 
Equity Officer: Renae Tolson 
Email: tolsonr@tcc.fl.edu 
Phone: (850) 201-6074 
Date: April 30, 2021 

  
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

1 
 

Contents 
General Information and Applicable Laws for Reporting .....................................................................2 

Part I. Description of Plan Development .............................................................................................3 

Part II. Policies and Procedures that Prohibit Discrimination ...............................................................3 

Part III. College Employment Equity Accountability Plan ......................................................................7 

Part IV. Strategies to Overcome Underrepresentation of Students .................................................... 14 

Part V. Substitution Waivers for Admissions and ............................................................................... 24 

Course Substitutions for Eligible Students with Disabilities ................................................................ 24 

Part VI. Gender Equity in Athletics .................................................................................................... 27 

Part VII. Signature Page .................................................................................................................... 31  

 

 

  



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

2 
 

General Information and Applicable Laws for Reporting 
 
The purpose of the College Annual Equity Update is to provide updates on efforts to comply with Florida 
Statutes related to nondiscrimination and equal access to postsecondary education and employment in 
Florida College System (FCS) institutions. The following Florida Statutes (F.S.) and implementing State 
Board of Education rules in the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) have specific requirements for the 
annual update.  
 

 Section 1000.05, F.S., the “Florida Educational Equity Act” 

 Section 1012.86, F.S., Florida College System institution employment equity accountability 
program 

 Section 1006.71, F.S., Gender equity in intercollegiate athletics 

 Implementing Rule 6A-10.041, F.A.C., Substitution for Requirements for Eligible Students with 
Disabilities at Florida Colleges and Postsecondary Career Centers 

 Implementing Rules 6A-19.001 – 6A-19.010, F.A.C., related to educational equity 
 
The Division of Florida Colleges (DFC) continues to provide certified data in Excel format on the areas of 
measurement required by statute and rule. Additionally, tables have been created and embedded in the 
template for setting goals and reflecting goal achievement. DFC encourages each college to devote 
attention to the development of effective methods and strategies for any areas of improvement 
identified in analyses. 
 
Submission of the College Annual Equity Update is due to the Florida Department of Education, Division 
of Florida Colleges by April 30, 2021. The update should be submitted by email to FCSInfo@fldoe.org. 
Colleges must submit this equity template in Word format. PDFs of the report template will not be 
accepted. Colleges may attach additional documents in PDF or Word format as appendices.  

 
DFC conducts reviews of annual college equity update reports pursuant to Rule 6A-19.010, F.A.C., 
implementing the Florida Educational Equity Act. The goals are to provide feedback for future updates, 
monitor efforts by the college to increase diversity in student participation and employment and meet 
requirements of Florida Statutes, including, but not limited to, the Florida Educational Equity Act and 
sections 1000.05, 1012.86 and 1006.71, F.S. 
 
The review includes an assessment of the college’s methods and strategies established to achieve goals 
and timelines addressing areas of underrepresentation of minorities in its academic programs, activities 
and employment. The review also includes an evaluation of submitted policies and procedures for 
compliance with state and federal civil rights laws prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, 
national origin, ethnicity, gender, marital status, age, genetic information or disability. The review may 
include comments or recommendations in areas where the college has achieved or exceeded its goals or 
in areas where there is incomplete or missing information. 
 
For the 2020-21 report, the factors DFC will identify as part of its review will be embedded after sections 
of the report and DFC will use these sections to provide feedback to colleges. These will be marked 
“Completed by Division of Florida Colleges.” Example:  



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

3 
 

 
 

Part I. Description of Plan Development 
 

Did the college make any changes to the development of the college equity plan? Make a selection: No 
If yes, provide the following applicable updates. 

 
A list of persons, by title and organizational location, involved in the development of the plan.  
 
Response: Click here to enter text. 
 
A description of the participation of any advisory groups or persons. 
 
Response: Click here to enter text. 

 

Review of Part I: Description of Plan Development 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Did the college change the college 
equity plan? 

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

 

 
 

Part II. Policies and Procedures that Prohibit Discrimination 
 

This section relates to processes used to ensure that certain policies and procedures are current, 
accurate, in compliance and available to all students, employees and applicants as required by statute.  
 
A) Has the governing board updated the college’s approved and adopted policy of nondiscrimination? 
Make a selection: No If yes, provide the following applicable updates. 
 

Date of revision: Click here to enter text. 
Description of the revision: Click here to enter text. 
Web link(s) to document the revision: Click here to enter text. 

 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

4 
 

B) Has the college updated the procedures used to notify staff, students, applicants for employment and 
admission, collective bargaining units and the general public of this policy? Make a selection: No If yes, 
provide updated information. 

 
Response: Click here to enter text. 

 
C) Has the college changed the person(s) designated to coordinate the college’s compliance with section 
1000.05, F.S.; Rule 6A-19.009-.010, F.A.C.; Title IX; Section 504; or Title II? Make a selection: No If yes, 
provide the following applicable information for each updated contact. 

Name/title: Click here to enter text. 
Phone number: Click here to enter text. 
Address: Click here to enter text. 
Email address: Click here to enter text. 
Is this contact’s information available in the regular notice of nondiscrimination?  
Make a selection: Select one. 
 

D) Has the college updated the grievance or complaint procedures for use by students, applicants and 
employees who allege discrimination? Make a selection: Yes If yes, provide the following applicable 
updates. 

 
Date of revision: August 26, 2020 
Description of the revision: Due to new Title IX requirements, the College revised Procedure 03-
01-1AP and created Procedure 03-01-2AP. 
Web link(s) to document the revision: Procedure 1) 
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/board-of-trustees-documents/college-procedures/bot-
procedures/procedures/03/03-01-1AP.pdf  Procedure 2) 
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/board-of-trustees-documents/college-procedures/bot-
procedures/procedures/03/03-01-2AP.pdf  

 
E) Grievance procedures should address the following, at a minimum, as required under Rule 6A-
19.010(h), F.A.C. Confirm if the college is meeting these requirements. 
 

1) Notifications of these procedures are placed in prominent and common information sources. 
Make a selection: Yes 

 
2) Procedure(s) are designed to encourage prompt and equitable resolution of student, employee 

and applicant complaints, but do not prohibit individuals from seeking redress from other 
available sources. Make a selection: Yes 

 
3) Procedures prohibit retaliation against any person filing a complaint alleging discrimination or 

any person alleged to have committed discrimination. Make a selection: Yes 
 

If no, provide the college’s plan for compliance. 
 
Response: Click here to enter text. 

 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

5 
 

F) Have there been any revisions to nondiscrimination policies or procedures pertaining to: 

Title IX? Yes 

Title II? Yes 

Section 504? Yes 

Nondiscrimination policies or procedures pertaining to disability 
services, including Rule 6A-10.041, F.A.C., that addresses course 
substitution requirements? 

No 

Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome/Human 
Immunodeficiency Virus (AIDS/HIV) Infectious Disease? 

No 

Other policies or procedures related to civil rights or 
nondiscrimination? 

No 

 
If yes, address the following for any identified policies or procedures. 

Name of the policy and/or procedure(s): Procedure 03-01-1AP - Equal Access/Equal 
Opportunity, Discrimination, Sexual Misconduct, and Unlawful Harassment, Procedure 03-01-
2AP - Title IX Sexual Harassment, and Procedure 03-01-3AP - Student Accessibility Services (SAS) 
Documentation. 
Date of revision: August 26, 2020 
Description of the revision: Due to new Title IX requirements, the College revised Procedure 03-
01-1AP and created Procedure 03-01-2AP. 
Web link(s) to document the revision: : Procedure 1) 
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/board-of-trustees-documents/college-procedures/bot-
procedures/procedures/03/03-01-1AP.pdf  Procedure 2) 
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/board-of-trustees-documents/college-procedures/bot-
procedures/procedures/03/03-01-2AP.pdf  and Procedure 3) 
https://www.tcc.fl.edu/media/divisions/board-of-trustees-documents/college-procedures/bot-
procedures/procedures/03/03-01-3AP-Student-Accessibility-Services-(SAS)-Documentation-
Guidelines.pdf  

 

Review of Part II: Policies and Procedures that Prohibit Discrimination 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Have there been any updates to the 
college’s policy of nondiscrimination 
adopted by the governing board? 

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

Have there been any updates to the 
procedures utilized to notify staff, 
students, applicants for employment 
and admission, collective bargaining 
units and the general public of this 
policy?  

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

6 
 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Have there been any updates to 
person(s) designated to coordinate the 
college’s compliance with section 
1000.05, F.S.; Rules 6A-19.009-.010, 
F.A.C.; Title IX; Section 504; or Title II? 

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

Have there been any updates to the 
college’s grievance or complaint 
procedures for use by students, 
applicants and employees who allege 
discrimination? 

Select one.   

If yes, applicable updates provided? Select one.   

Grievance procedures should address 
the following at a minimum as required 
under Rule 6A-19.010(h), F.A.C. 

- - - 

Notifications of these procedures 
are placed in prominent and 
common information sources. 

Select one.   

Procedure(s) are designed to 
encourage prompt and equitable 
resolution of student, employee 
and applicant complaints, but do 
not prohibit individuals from 
seeking redress from other 
available sources. 

Select one.   

Procedures prohibit retaliation 
against any person filing a 
complaint alleging discrimination or 
any person alleged to have 
committed discrimination. 

Select one.   

If no, is a plan for compliance 
provided? 

Select one.   

 

 
  



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

7 
 

Part III. College Employment Equity Accountability Plan 
 

Section 1012.86, F.S., Florida College System institution employment equity accountability program, 
requires that each college include in its annual equity update a plan for increasing the representation of 
women and minorities in senior-level positions, full-time faculty positions and full-time faculty positions 
who have attained continuing contract status. The plan must include specific, measurable goals and 
objectives, specific strategies and timelines for accomplishing these goals and objectives and 
comparable national standards as provided by the Florida Department of Education.  
 

A. Data, Analysis and Benchmarks 

DFC provides colleges with employment data for the last three fall terms to evaluate employment trends 
for females and minorities in senior-level positions (also referred to as Executive/Administrative/ 
Managerial or EAM positions), full-time instructional staff and full-time instructional staff with 
continuing contract status. DFC also provides colleges with student enrollment percentages by race and 
gender to be used as the benchmark for setting employment goals, as colleges seek to reflect their 
student demographics in their employment. 
 
College Full-Time Executive/Administrative/Managerial Staff  
Informed by the EMP-EAM tab, complete the following table to analyze the college’s attainment of 
annual goals and long-range goals for increasing the number of women and minorities in EAM positions.  

 

  

2019-20 Report 
Year College 

Student 
Population  

(%) 

EAM 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2019 

EAM 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2020 

EAM Stated 
Goals (%) 
Fall 2020 

EAM  
Goal 
Met 
(Yes
/No) 

EAM Goals for 
Fall 2021 

Black Female 21.2% 19.2% 20.7% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

Black Male 12.8% 7.7% 13.8% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

Hispanic Female 6.7% 3.8% 3.4% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

Hispanic Male 6.9% 3.8% 3.4% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 
Other Minorities 
Female 3.1% 3.8% 3.4% 

Within 10% of 
Student Population Yes 

Within 10% of 
Student Population 

Other Minorities Male 2.4% 3.8% 3.4% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

White Female 23.1% 23.1%  24.1% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

White Male 23.8% 34.6% 27.6% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

Total Female 54.0% 50.0% 51.7% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

Total Male 46.0% 50.0% 48.3% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 
 
Describe and evaluate strategies for addressing underrepresentation in EAM positions. 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

8 
 

Response: The College met all goals within the EAM category by coming well within ten percentage 
points of the student population.   
 

College Full-Time Instructional Staff 

Informed by the EMP-INSTRUCTIONAL tab, complete the following table to analyze the college’s 
attainment of annual goals and long-range goals for increasing the number of women and minorities in 
full-time instructional positions.  
 

  

2019-20 
Report Year 

College 
Student 

Population  
(%) 

INST 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2019 

INST 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2020 

INST Stated 
Goals (%) 
Fall 2020 

INST 
Goal Met 
(Yes/No) 

INST Goals for 
Fall 2021 

Black Female 21.2% 11.2% 14.2% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

Black Male 12.8% 10.1% 7.8% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

Hispanic Female 6.7% 3.9%  4.4% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

Hispanic Male 6.9% 5.1% 5.4% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 
Other Minorities 
Female 3.1% 3.4% 3.4% 

Within 10% of 
Student Population Yes 

Within 10% of 
Student Population 

Other Minorities 
Male 2.4% 0.0% 0.5% 

Within 10% of 
Student Population Yes 

Within 10% of 
Student Population 

White Female 23.1% 41.0% 42.2% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

White Male 23.8% 25.3% 22.1% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

Total Female 54.0% 59.6% 64.2% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 

Total Male 46.0% 40.4% 35.8% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population No 
Within 10% of 

Student Population 
 

Describe and evaluate strategies for addressing underrepresentation in full-time instructional positions. 

 
Response:  The College met its goals within the Full-Time Instructional Staff category except for the 
representation of Total Male faculty when compared to the student population.  Total Male faculty 
representation in this category was missed by .2% of a percentage point.  Recognizing that there is an 
increased need for male faculty, the College will pivot its recruitment focus to target male job 
seekers.  One strategy is to recruit on platforms that attract large veteran audiences.   
 

 
  



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

9 
 

College Full-Time Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract  
Informed by the EMP-CONTINUING CONTRACT tab, complete the following table to analyze the college’s 
attainment of annual goals and long-range goals for increasing the number of women and minorities in 
full-time instructional staff with continuing contract positions. 
  

  

2019-20 
Report 

Year 
College 
Student 

Population  
(%) 

INST-CONT 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2019 

INST-CONT 
Actuals  

(%) 
Fall 2020 

INST-CONT 
Stated 

Goals (%) 
Fall 2020 

INST-
CONT 

Goal Met 
(Yes/No) 

INST-CONT Goals 
for 

Fall 2021 

Black Female 21.2% 11.5% 11.0% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population No 
Within 10% of Student 

Population 

Black Male 12.8% 9.8% 8.5% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of Student 

Population 

Hispanic Female 6.7% 4.1% 4.2% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of Student 

Population 

Hispanic Male 6.9% 6.6% 6.8% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of Student 

Population 

Other Minorities Female 3.1% 2.5% 3.4% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of Student 

Population 

Other Minorities Male 2.4% 0.0% 0.8% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of Student 

Population 

White Female 23.1% 40.2% 41.5% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of Student 

Population 

White Male 23.8% 25.4% 23.7% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of Student 

Population 

Total Female 54.0% 58.2% 60.2% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of Student 

Population 

Total Male 46.0% 41.8% 39.7% 
Within 10% of 

Student Population Yes 
Within 10% of Student 

Population 
 
Describe and evaluate strategies for addressing underrepresentation in full-time instructional positions 

with continued contract. 

Response: The College met all goals within the Full-Time Instructional Staff with Continuing Contract 
category except for the representation of Black Female faculty.  Black Female faculty representation in 
this category was missed by .2% of a percentage point.  This was due in part to the focus on and success 
of increasing our Black Female student population.  The College’s Black Female student population has 
increased 1.58% from 2018-2019 to present, and current strategies should result in the continued 
increase in student minority populations.  In addition, 11 Continuing Contract faculty members retired 
during this reporting period, and Black Female faculty accounted for .9% of these Continuting Contract 
faculty retirements.  Current data indicates the College is expected to gain additional Black Female 
faculty with Continuing Contract for the next reporting period.   The College will maintain its current 
support for Annual Contract faculty seeking to become Continuing Contract faculty.  This support 
includes, but is not limited to, the New Faculty Seminar Program and training requirements presented 
through the College’s Center for Professional Enrichment.                                                                            
 
 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

10 
 

New Barriers (Optional) 
Are there new barriers affecting the successful recruitment and/or retention of females and/or 
minorities in any employment category? 
 

Response: There are no new barriers affecting the successful recruitment and/or retention of females 
and/or minorities in any of the employment categories. 

 

Review of Part III (A): Attainment of Annual Goals 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include an analysis and 
assessment of annual and long-range 
goals for increasing women and 
minorities in: 

- - - 

EAM positions? Select one.   

Full-time instructional positions? Select one.   

Full-time with continuing contract 
instructional positions? 

Select one.   

Does the report identify any new 
barriers affecting the recruitment and 
retention of females and/or minorities? 

Select one.   

 

 
 
B. Evaluations of Employment Practices – Evaluations of Key Personnel and Presidents 
1) Provide a summary of the results of the evaluation of department chairpersons, deans, provosts and 
vice presidents in achieving employment accountability goals. The summary should also briefly describe 
the remedial steps to be taken when staff evaluations yield unsatisfactory progress toward meeting 
intended goals.  
 

Response: The Provost’s evaluation of the Deans indicates that each Dean has supported and promoted 
the College’s diversity initiatives.  Program Chairs, along with all other faculty members, are evaluated 
by their Dean. Diversity initiatives have been supported by each Dean through promoting diversity 
among faculty screening committees, participating in and instructing screening committees, and 
providing equity training for Program Chairs.  Deans understand and communicate to the Program 
Chairs the importance, and associated benefits to the College, of having a well diverse faculty. Remedial 
steps are taken when staff evaluations yield unsatisfactory progress toward meeting intended goals.  
Such steps will involve the supervisor re-evaluating past efforts to determine why the goal was not met 
and to develop new strategies on how to meet future goals.  Developing new strategies may include 
modifying the College’s use of the internet to identify targeted recruitment sites for qualified minority 
and female applicants, expanding publications and advertisements of its vacancies, and revisiting the 
College’s competitive and non-competitive promotional opportunities.  Also, it should be noted that the 

President has launched the Commission on Race and Equity at the College to develop specific and 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

11 
 

actionable recommendations that will cultivate a deeper understanding of our diverse College 
community.   

2) Provide a summary of the college’s board of trustees’ annual evaluation of the performance of the 
president in achieving the annual and long-term goals and objectives of the employment equity plan. 
 

Response: “As Trustees, we continue to applaud the successes of education and management on Dr. 
Murdaugh’s watch, despite the many financial and day-to-day handicaps that have resulted from dealing 
with the pandemic.         Dr. Murdaugh’s ability to meld his educational accomplishments with his 
impressive people skills continues to advance TCC to a national threshold of greatness.”  

3) What is the date of the president’s most recent evaluation? 
 

Response: May 18, 2020  

 

Review of Part III (B): Evaluations of Employment Practices 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include a summary of 
the results of the evaluation of 
department chairpersons, deans, 
provosts and vice presidents in 
achieving employment accountability 
goals? 

Select one.   

Does the summary describe the 
remedial steps to be taken when staff 
evaluations yield unsatisfactory 
progress toward meeting intended 
goals? 

Select one.   

Does the report include a summary of 
the results of the annual evaluation of 
the college president in achieving the 
annual and long-term goals and 
objectives?  

Select one.   

Does the report include the date of the 
most recent presidential evaluation? 

Select one.   

 

 

C. Additional Requirements  
The college should complete the following related to additional processes required by section 1012.86, 
F.S.  
 
1) The college maintains diversity and balance in the gender and ethnic composition of the selection 
committee for each vacancy. Make a selection: Yes 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

12 
 

Include a brief description of guidelines used for ensuring balanced and diverse membership on 
selection and review committees. 
 
Response: Tallahassee Community College strongly encourages the use of balanced and diverse review 
committees that include women and minorities.  It is the responsibility of the hiring authority to ensure 
that the Review Team composition is in accordance with the College’s equity plan. Human Resources 
will review hiring committees and the recommendation packet to ensure it was completed in 
accordance with applicable College policies and procedures. The make-up of the Review Team may 
encompass two or more members, excluding non-voting or ex-officio members.  The President has the 
flexibility of altering the selection process for executive positions. 
 
2) Briefly describe the process used to grant continuing contracts. 
 
Response: Faculty members must serve at the College in a probationary status in accordance with the 
provisions and intent of 6A-14.0411(1)(a)(b)(c)(d) FAC for five full years in the capacity of a full-time 
faculty member.  Continuing Contract is recommended to the Board of Trustees by the President for 
faculty members who have received satisfactory ratings on the evaluation of the performance of their 
duties and responsibilities during the probationary period. 
 
3) Briefly describe the process used to annually apprise each eligible faculty member of progress toward 
attainment of continuing contract status. 
 
Response: Full-time faculty and Deans meet to set/review goals in the fall of each year. The Deans meet 
with faculty members in the spring to provide an evaluation based on the goals established in the fall, 
including a variety of measures related to teaching and other faculty responsibilities.  Each faculty 
member will receive an annual classroom observation (Continuing Contract faculty receive a bi-annual 
classroom observation unless a more frequent review is needed). The visits are conducted by the 
Dean/Division Director and will be followed by a conference to discuss the observations. The results of 
the observation and conferences may be incorporated as a part of the annual evaluation report.  For 
Continuing Contract faculty, the conference may be a part of the annual assessment conference.  During 
the assessment conference, the faculty member will review his/her progress toward established goals 
and present next year’s goals to the Dean/Division Director. The discussion consists of observations 
based on any classroom visit, items suggested in student evaluations and other resources as 
appropriate. 
 
4) Briefly describe the college’s budgetary incentive plan to support and ensure the attainment of 
employment equity accountability goals. Include how resources will be allocated to support the 
implementation of strategies and the achievement of goals in a timely manner.  
 
Response: The College allocates funds for advertising in national publications and web sites, with direct 
marketing strategies targeting specific minority groups. In addition, the College allocates travel funds to 
invite applicants to campus for interviews 
 
  



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

13 
 

5) Salary Information: In the following table, include the salary ranges in which new hires were 
employed compared to the salary ranges for employees with comparable experience and qualifications 
as required in section 1012.86(2)(b)(5), F.S. Add additional rows if needed. 
 
Note: Salary information is requested only for new hires. New hire information can be found in your Fall 
Staff Survey IPEDS report. Race and gender information are not required; however, the college may 
choose to include additional information for purposes of diversity analysis. 
 

  Job Classification 
# of New 

Hires* 
New Hires* 

Salary Range 

# of Existing 
Employee(s) 

with 
Comparable 
Experience 

Existing 
Employee* 

Salary Range 

Row 1 Faculty Hires 5 $44,059  –  $53,462 65 $44,059 - $56,320 

Row 2 Classified Staff 28 $24,960  -  $34,902 143 $24,960 - $53,868 

Row 3 Classified Saff Prof 14 $37,281 - $60,000 138 $29,464 - $79,233 

Row 4 Managerial Prof 4 $58,000 - $80,000 34 $51,676 - $120,460 

Row 5      

Row 6      

Row 7      
 
*IPEDS definition of New Hires: Includes full-time permanent new hires on the payroll of the institution between 
November 1, 2019, and October 31, 2020, either for the first time (new to the institution) or after a break in service 
and who are still on the payroll of the institution as November 1, 2019. 

 

Review of Part III(C): Additional Requirements 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include a brief 
description of guidelines used for 
ensuring balanced and diverse 
membership on selection and review 
committees? 

Select one.   

Does the report include a description of 
the process used to grant continuing 
contracts? 

Select one.   

Does the report include a description of 
the process used to annually apprise 
each eligible faculty member of 
progress toward attainment of 
continuing contract status? 

Select one.   

Has the college developed a budgetary 
incentive plan to support and ensure 

Select one.   



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

14 
 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

attainment of the goals developed 
pursuant to section 1012.86, F.S.? 

Did the college include a summary 
of the incentive plan? 

Select one.   

Did the summary include strategic 
resource allocation? 

Select one.   

Does the report include a comparison 
of the salary ranges of new hires to 
salary ranges for employees with 
comparable experience and 
qualifications? 

Select one.   

 
 

 

Part IV. Strategies to Overcome Underrepresentation of Students 
 

Student Enrollments 
Colleges will continue to examine data trends, using the ENROLLMENT tab, in the representation of 
students by race, ethnicity, gender, students with limited English-language proficiency (LEP) skills and 
students with disabilities (DIS) (self-reported) for first-time-in-college (FTIC) and overall enrollment. 
Based on goals from previous equity reports, identify areas where goals (number of enrollments) set by 
the college last year were achieved and set goals for 2019-20 reporting year. 

Enrollments 

FTIC Overall Enrollments 

2019-20 
Goals  

 

2019-20 
Goals 

Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2020-21 
Goals  

2019-20 
Goals  

 

2019-20 
Goals 

Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2020-21 
Goals 

Black Males 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase 
the 

percentage 
of Black 

Male FTIC 
as a 

percentage 
of the total 
number of 

FTIC 
students 

 

No, the 
gap 

between 
Black Male 
FTIC as a 

percentage 
of the total 
number of 

FTIC 
students 
increased 
by 1.3%. 

Increase 
the 

percentage 
of Black 

Male FTIC 
as a 

percentage 
of the total 
number of 

FTIC 
students 

 

Decrease 
the gap 

between 
Black Male 

FTIC and 
Black Male 

Total 
Enrollment 

by 1% 
 
 
 

Yes, the 
gap 

between 
Black Male 

FTIC and 
Black Male 

Total 
Enrollment 
decreased 

by 1%. 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of 

Black Male 
Total 

Enrollment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

15 
 

Enrollments 

FTIC Overall Enrollments 

2019-20 
Goals  

 

2019-20 
Goals 

Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2020-21 
Goals  

2019-20 
Goals  

 

2019-20 
Goals 

Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2020-21 
Goals 

Black Females 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 

Decrease 
the gap 

between 
Black 

Female 
and Black 

Male Total 
Enrollment 

by 1% 
 

No, the 
gap 

between 
Black 

Female 
and Black 

Male Total 
Enrollment 
increased 

1.1% 

Decrease the 
gap between 
Black Female 

and Black 
Male Total 

Enrollment by 
1% 

 

Hispanic 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase 
the 

Hispanic 
Total 

Enrollment 
by 1% over 
prior year 

Total 
Enrollment 

No, the 
Hispanic 

total 
enrollment 
remained 

flat 
compared 

to prior 
year 

Increase the 
Hispanic Total 
Enrollment by 

1%  
 
 
 
 
 

 
Colleges should continue to assess, modify and/or develop new methods and strategies for 
accomplishing the established goals that have not been achieved based on goals set in the previous 
year.  
 
The college is achieving all goals: No If no, provide: 

 
An evaluation of each of the methods and strategies developed to increase student enrollments 
from underrepresented groups.  
 
Response:  For 2019-2020 TCC was down -1% in FTIC Enrollment and -2.3% in Total 
Enrollment.   We did see modest gains in Black FTIC Enrollment (1.1%) and Black Total 
Enrollment (.5%), but not within the Black Male students in either category.  Overall, we had a -
5.4% decrease in Male FTIC students for 2019-2020, which impacted meeting our intended 
goals.  Existing methods and strategies to increase student enrollment in underrepresented 
areas include the following: (1) The College continues to support and a wide variety of 
recruitment and enrollment strategies to address our equity goals, including but not limited to 
our TRIO and Take Stock In Children Grants, elementary and middle school outreach in the 
32304 zip code (e.g., Reading Pals at Riley Elementary, Career Discovery Program (STEM Focus) 
at Griffin Middle School, and increased opportunities for college success and career exploration 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

16 
 

at Godby High School through dual enrollment.  (2) TCC also offered its first Summer Jump Start 
program in 2020.  This program was an opportunity for rising junior or seniors in high school in 
our tri-county area to dual enroll for the first time during the June Express session without the 
mandatory placement score requirement.  The student completed the Super Strong inventory to 
develop a career pathway based on the student’s strengths, interests, and values.  The criteria 
for this program was a 3.0 GPA.  The students received 6 credit hours in preselected courses via 
TCC LIVE.  This program had a 91% pass rate, and continued for the Fall 2020 semester as 
well.  (Summer – 93 students; Fall 219 students). (3)TCC launched The Summer Scholar Program 
for newly graduated seniors in our tri-county areas who planned to attend TCC as freshmen in 
the  fall.  These students received up to 6 credit hours FREE via TCC Live, synchronous learning, 
during our June Express semester, which began June 23 and ran through August 5th.  They also 
received a book stipend through our TCC Bookstore for these courses.   (107 students) (4) TCC 
continues to grow its Eagle RISE Summer Academy program.   To help them achieve a successful 
transition to college, the summer bridge program is aimed to connect low-income, minority and 
first generation students with faculty, staff, and resources across TCC’s campus.  Selected 
participants receive scholarships for 6 hours of college level credit, free textbooks, and many 
other benefits upon continued enrollment at the college.  (5) TCC has signed an enhanced 
memorandum of understanding with Florida A & M University to strengthen our TCC2FAMU 
program and increase enrollment of black students.  
 
New methods and strategies, if applicable.  
 
Response: Due to the pandemic TCC has pivoted to offering more virtual campus tours, virtual 
information sessions on admissions and financial aid, and offered Zoom information sessions in 
local high school classrooms.  We have also restructured our Admissions & Records team to 
have Admissions Navigators who proactively work with each applicant to the college helping 
them resolve any holds and questions related to their admission to the college. We will continue 
to monitor our existing strategies as we move forward to determine impact on closing our 
equity gaps. 

 
Student Completions 
This year’s report evaluates completions of Associate in Arts (A.A.) degrees, Associate in 
Science/Associate in Applied Science (A.S./A.A.S.) degrees, certificates and baccalaureate degrees, as 
documented in the COMPLETION tab. Based on goals from previous equity reports, identify areas where 
goals (number of degree/certificate completions) set by the college last year were achieved and set 
goals for 2020-21. Certificates include: College Credit Certificates (CCC); Career Certificates (CC); Applied 
Technology Diplomas (ATD); Education Preparation Institution Certificates (EPI); Certificates of 
Professional Preparation (CPP); Apprenticeship Programs (APPR); and Advanced Technical Certificates 
(ATC). 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

17 
 

A.A. Degrees 

2019-20 
Goals  

2019-20 Goals Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2020-21 
Goals  

Black 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

students who 
complete AA degrees 

by 1% 
 
 
 

 

No, while the number of 
Black students earning an 
AA degree increased the 

overall percentage of Black 
students who completed 

an AA degree compared to 
the total number of AA 

degrees awarded 
remained flat. 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

students who complete 
AA degrees by 1% 

 

Hispanic None   

Other Minorities None   

White None   

Female None   

Male 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Male 

students who 
complete AA degrees 

by 1% 

Yes, the percentage of 
Male students who 

completed AA degrees 
increased by 2.5%. 

Increase the 
percentage of Male 

students who complete 
AA degrees by 1% 

LEP None None None 

DIS  None None None 

A.S./A.A.S. Degrees 

2019-20 
Goals  

2019-20 Goals Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2020-21 
Goals 

Black Males 
 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 
Male students who 

complete AS degrees 
by 1% 

No, the percentage of 
Black Male students who 
completed an AS degree 

decreased by .8%. 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 
Male students who 

complete AS degrees 
by 1% 

Black Females 
 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

Female students who 
complete AS degrees 

by 1% 

No, but the percentage of 
Black Female students who 

complete AS degrees did 
increase by .8%. 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

Female students who 
complete AS degrees 

by 1% 

Hispanic None None None 

Other Minorities None None None 

White None None None 

Female None None None 

Male None None None 

LEP None None None 

DIS  

 
 

None 
 
 

None None 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

18 
 

Colleges should continue to assess, modify and/or develop new methods and strategies for 
accomplishing the established goals that have not been achieved based on goals set in the previous 
year. 
 
The college is achieving all goals: No If no, provide: 

 
An evaluation of each of the methods and strategies developed to increase student completions 
from underrepresented groups.  
 
Response: (1) TCC continues to evaluate, design and refine its student experience aligned to its 
CARE model (Connections, Academics, Resources, and Engagement) and Guided Pathways. New 
students complete a career assessment prior to registering for their first semester of courses 
and each meta-major has a recommended course selection based on their area of interest.  
Working in collaboration with FSU and FAMU, academic maps have been designed specific for 
TCC students.  Our university partners continue to offer advising services on our campus to 
students in the TCC2FSU and TCC2FAMU program and we are now engaged in more data 
sharing between the institutions to further provide support to students who wish to transfer.  
(2) During the 19-20 academic year, minoritized students benefited from academic and holistic 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Certificates 

2019-20 
Goals 

2019-20 Goals Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2020-21 
Goals 

Black 
 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 

None 
 
 
 

Increase the 
percentage of Black 

students who complete 
certificates by 1% 

Hispanic None None  

Other Minorities None None  

White None None  

Female None None  

Male None None  

LEP None None  

DIS  None None  

Baccalaureate Degrees 

2019-20 
Goals 

2019-20 Goals Achieved 
(Yes/No) 

2020-21 
Goals 

Black None None  

Hispanic None None  

Other Minorities None None  

White None None  

Female None None  

Male None None  

LEP None None  

DIS  None None  



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

19 
 

support through the participation in the Black Male Achievers and Sister 2 Sister 
Alliance.  Students engaged in small group activities, alliance meetings, as well as community 
service to obtain a sense of belonging. Membership highlights included: presented at the Black, 
Brown, and College Bound National Conference, hosted a leadership symposium, and received 
mentoring from faculty. One hundred and five students (105) participated and achieved an 83% 
fall to spring retention rate. (3) TCC continues to support student needs outside the classroom 
through Talon’s Market, our Case Manger position, Eagle Relief Fund, and mental health 
services. (4)  Math Champions continues to provide peer-to-peer support to students in 
Gateway math courses.   
 
New methods and strategies, if applicable.  
 
Response: New strategies to help improve completion rates include the following: (1)The 
College has hired a team of Academic Success Coaches assigned to our first time in college 
students to proactively connect and nudge students throughout their first year on successful 
student behaviors; (2) additional resources such as Study Edge and college learning support staff 
have been embedded into courses.  These academic support services are provided directly 
within the classroom offering just-in-time interaction to staff and resources; (3) all students 
have been assigned to a Career and Academic Adviser; and (4) the College has a renewed 
emphasis on CTE and short-term credentials aligned to current job market demands. 

 
Student Success in Targeted Programs 
The college’s plan for 2019-20 should have included methods and strategies to increase the 
participation of students in programs and courses in which students have been traditionally 
underrepresented, including, but not limited to, mathematics, science, computer technology, 
electronics, communications technology, engineering and career education, as required under section 
1000.05(4), F.S. Colleges should provide any updates to methods and strategies, if applicable. 
 
The college is providing updates: Yes If no, provide: 

 
An evaluation of each of the methods and strategies developed to increase underrepresented 
student participation in programs and courses. 
 
Response:  Tallahassee  Community  College  offers  several  programs  that  are  geared  towards 
increasing  participation  of  students  in  programs  and  courses  in  which  students  have  been 
traditionally underrepresented, including, but not limited to, mathematics, science, computer 
technology, electronics, communications technology, engineering and career education, as required 
under §1000.05, F.S. The  programs  are  as  follows: Florida Georgia Louis Stokes Alliance for Minority 
Participation (FGLSAMP), National Science Foundation (NSF) S-STEM, Sister 2 Sister, and Black Male 
Achievers. Each program provides strategies to increase participation for underrepresented students 
such as:   

 

Strategy Expected 
Outcomes 

Assessment 
Method 

Results 

The    College    offers   

partners with local 

Number of 

underrepresented 

Compare number of 

underrepresented 

2017-2018: 18 students 

2018-2019: 18 students 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

20 
 

universities and 

laboratories to 

provide internship 

opportunities for 

students enrolled in 

STEM related courses 

and disciplines. 

The College will 

engage and actively 

recruit students for 

full scholarships within 

STEM disciplines 

(defined by National 

Science Foundation) 

via outreach and 

engagement in the 

community and within 

the campus. 

 

The College will 

collaborate with STEM 

faculty to serve as 

mentors to students in 

STEM courses and 

disciplines. 

Provide workshops for 
academic and career 
preparedness post 
graduation from TCC. 
 

students participating 

in STEM internships will 

increase by 10%. 

 

Recruitment of 
qualified students for 
STEM scholarship 
placement will reach 
100%. 

students 

participating in 

internships during 

2017-2018 to 2018-

2019  to 2019-2020. 

2019-2020: 3 students  

 

The College did not 
experience an increase in 
underrepresented 
students participating in 
STEM internships. The 
number of students 
decreased during 2019-
20 as most internships 
occur during the summer 
months and  was  
disrupted      by  the 
pandemic. However, 3 
students      did      participate 
in a virtual training 
during this period. The 
College will continue to 
explore methods to 
further increase 
participation. 2020- 
2021 data will not be 
available until June 
2021. 

The College offers 

scholarship 

opportunities for 

underrepresented 

students who are 

enrolled in  STEM  

related  programs 

(scholarships 

provided through 

FGLSAMP and STEM 

Star).  

 

The College will 

provide better 

Number of qualified 
awardees will increase 
by 10%. 

Compare number of 

underrepresented 

students awarded 

scholarships during 

2017-2018 to 2018-

2019   to 2019-2020. 

2017-2018: 30  students 

2018-2019: 35  students 

2019-2020: 47 students  

 

The College increased the 

number of 

underrepresented 

students who were 

awarded scholarships.  

The College will 

continue to explore 

more options to increase 

the number of students. 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

21 
 

marketing to 

incoming high school 

students by 

visiting high school 
senior nights; 
participating in the 
scholarship fairs; 
contacting students 
who identify as being 
interested in STEM. 
 
 

2020-2021 data will not 

be available until June 

2021. 

The College offers STEM 
Center tutoring for STEM 
Gateway Courses. 

Number of 
underrepresented 
students successfully 
completing STEM 
Gateway Courses will 
increase by 10%. 

Compare the success 

rates of 

underrepresented 

students 

participating in 

tutoring provided by 

the STEM Center to the 

underrepresented 

students who are not 

participating in 

tutoring during 2017-

2018 to 2018-2019  to 

2019-2020. 

2017-2018: 36     students 

2018-2019: 38  students 

2019-2020: 20     students 

 
The College experienced a 
decrease in 
underrepresented 
students participating in 
STEM internships. The 
disruption of the 
pandemic shifted most 
tutoring to a virtual 
setting, where the STEM 
Center was not ready to 
provide this service until 
Fall     2020. The      College 
will continue to explore 
methods to further 
increase participation. 
2020-2021  data  will   not 
be available until June 
2021. 
 

The College offers 
extracurricular 
Workshops to increase 
STEM awareness: 
Robotics Workshop; 
Drone Workshop; 3D 
Printing Workshop; 
Auto-Cad Workshop. 
Increase marketing for 
the workshops as well 

Number of 
underrepresented 
students participating 
in extracurricular 
workshops will 
increase by 10%. 

Compare number of 

underrepresented 

students 

participating in the 

activities during 

2017-2018 to 2018-

2019  to 2019-2020. 

2017-2018: 86  students 

2018-2019: 88          students 

2019-2020: 83 students  

 

The College experienced a 

small decrease in 

underrepresented 

students participating in 

extracurricular 

workshops and STEM 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

22 
 

as increase the 
number of available 
workshops. 

internships. The 

disruption of the 

pandemic caused for 

multiple workshops 

planned to be 

postponed or cancelled. 

The College will 

continue to explore 

methods to further 

increase participation. 

2020-2021 data will not 

be available until June 

2021. 

The College offers 
Career Awareness 
Workshops for 
underrepresented 
students: Increase the 
offerings of STEM 
Career Workshops and 
invite 
underrepresented 
professionals to 
discuss their career 
pathway. 

Increase the number 
of Career Awareness 
Workshops for 
underrepresented 
students. 

Compare the number of 
workshops offered each 
year. 

2017-2018: 5 

workshops 

2018-2019: 10 

2019-2020: 0 

 
The     STEM     Center    did  not 

collaborate with the 

Career Center during the 

2019-2020 academic 

year. However, 

students were 

encouraged to 

participate in a panel 

discussion with Tal Tech 

to explore STEM Career 

opportunities locally. 

The College continues 

to develop workshops. 

2020-2021 data will not 
be available until June 
2021. 
 

The College has 
implemented a Math 
Champions initiative to 
provide peer tutoring. 
Students will provide 
tutoring and study 
workshops. 

An increase of success 
for participating 
students in Math by 
5%. Increase time to 
completion of Math 
sequence. 

Success rates for 
underrepresented 
students participating 
vs. control (students 
that do not). 

The success rates of 
students participating in 
the Math Champions 
initiative was      3%        points 
higher than non- 
participants based on 
students enrolled in 
gateway math courses 
during the 2018-2020 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

23 
 

academic year. 2020-
2021 data will not be 
available until June 
2021. 
 

 

 
Review of Part IV: Strategies to Overcome Underrepresentation of Students 

(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 
 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Is the college achieving all its goals in 
terms of student enrollments by race, 
gender, students with disabilities and 
students with limited English 
proficiencies? 

Select one.   

If no, evaluation of current 
methods and strategies and new 
methods and strategies provided? 

Select one.   

Is the college achieving all its goals in 
terms of student completions by race, 
gender, students with disabilities and 
students with limited English 
proficiencies? 

Select one.   

If no, evaluation of current 
methods and strategies and new 
methods and strategies provided? 

Select one.   

The report should include an analysis of 
student participation in traditionally 
underrepresented programs and 
courses, including, but not limited to, 
mathematics, science, computer 
technology, electronics, 
communications technology, 
engineering and career education. Did 
the college provide updates for its goal 
in terms of student completions across 
the aforementioned categories?   

Select one.   

If no, evaluation of current 
methods and strategies and new 
methods and strategies provided? 

Select one.   

 
 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

24 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Part V. Substitution Waivers for Admissions and  
Course Substitutions for Eligible Students with Disabilities 

 
Course Substitution Report, Form CSR01 

Please list the number of students who received course substitutions as well as the required course(s), 
substitution(s) provided and discipline area (e.g., mathematics) by disability type beginning with the fall 
semester of the preceding academic year. For the courses, please include the prefix, course number and 
course name (e.g., ENC 1101 Composition I). Add rows if necessary. Please indicate “0” for the number 
of students if no substitutions were granted. 

Disability Type Number 
of 
Students 

Required Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Substituted Course(s)  
(prefix, number and title) 

Discipline Area 

Deaf/Hard of 
Hearing 

    

   

   

Visual Impairment     

   

   

Specific Learning 
Disability 

15  MGF1106-
Mathematics I 
for Liberal Arts 

 MGF1107-
Mathematics II 
for Liberal Arts 

 MAT 1033 
Intermediate 
Algebra 

 CGS 1060 Computer 
and Internet 
Literacy 

 OCE1001 
Introductory 
Oceanography 

 EME2040 
Introduction to 
Technology for 
Educators 

General 
Education 
Mathematics 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

25 
 

Disability Type Number 
of 
Students 

Required Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Substituted Course(s)  
(prefix, number and title) 

Discipline Area 

Two (2) Semesters of 
Foreign Language 

 ANT2418 
Introduction to 
Cultural 
Anthropology 

 AML2600 African 
American Literature 

Foreign 
Language 

Orthopedic 
Impairment 

    

   

   

Speech/Language 
Impairment 

    

   

   

Emotional or 
Behavioral 
Disability 

2  MGF 1106 
Mathematics I 
for Liberal Arts 

 MGF 1107- 
Mathematics II 
for Liberal Arts 

 CGS 1060 Computer 
and Internet 
Literacy 

 OCE1001 
Introductory 
Oceanography 

 

   

   

Autism Spectrum 
Disorder 

    

   

   

Traumatic Brain 
Injury 

1 Two (2) Semesters of 
Foreign Language 

 ANT2418 
Introduction to 
Cultural 
Anthropology 

 AML2600 African 
American Literature 

Foreign 
Language 

   



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

26 
 

Disability Type Number 
of 
Students 

Required Course(s)  
(prefix, number and 
title) 

Substituted Course(s)  
(prefix, number and title) 

Discipline Area 

   

Other Health 
Impairment 

    

   

   

 

How many requests for course substitutions were made and how many substitutions were granted 
during the preceding academic year? (Please list the number of requests per semester starting with the 
fall semester.) Please indicate “0” if no substitutions were requested or granted. 

Semester Number of Substitutions Requested  Number of Substitutions Granted 

Fall 2019 14 9 

Spring 2020 11 8 

Summer 2020 3 1 

Total 28 18 

 

Review of Part V: Course Substitutions 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Did the college submit 
the Course Substitution 
Report? 

Select 
one. 

  

 
  



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

27 
 

 

 

 
 

Part VI. Gender Equity in Athletics 

 
The college offers athletic programs: Yes If no, move to the next section. If yes, complete this section. 
 
Assessment of Athletic Programs  
Section 1006.71, F.S., Gender equity in intercollegiate athletics, is applicable to postsecondary 
institutions offering athletic programs. Florida College System institutions that offer athletic programs 
shall develop a gender equity plan pursuant to section 1000.05, F.S. The plan is to include consideration 
of equity in sports offerings, participation, availability of facilities, scholarship offerings and funds 
allocated for administration, recruitment, comparable coaching, publicity and promotion and other 
support costs. An annual assessment is required and each college president is to be evaluated on the 
extent to which gender equity goals have been accomplished.  
 
For this part, provide the college’s latest Equity in Athletics Disclosure Act (EADA) Survey Federal Report 
as an appendix. 
 
Data Assessment  
Section 1006.71, F.S., requires an assessment of major areas to evaluate the college’s progress toward 
gender equity in athletics.  
 

Provide updates or new information related to sports offerings; participation; availability of facilities; 
scholarship offerings; funds allocated for administration, recruitment, comparable coaching, publicity 
and promotions; or other considerations by the college to continue efforts to achieve gender equity. If 
the college is not in compliance with Title IX, updates must be included in the college’s Corrective Action 
Plan of this report. 
 
Compliance with Title IX  
Using athletic participation data from the latest EADA Survey Federal Report, complete the following 
table to determine gender equity based on participation rates. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

28 
 

Athletic Participation by Gender Compared to Student Enrollments by  
Gender for July 1, 2018, through June 30, 2019, and July 1, 2019, through June 30, 2020 

 

 2018-19 2019-20 

 Males Females Total  Males Females Total   

Total Number of Athletes 54 41 95 Total Number of Athletes 56 42 98 
Percent of Athletes by 
Gender 

56.8% 43.2% 100% Percent of Athletes by 
Gender 

57.1% 42.9% 100% 

Total Number of 
Enrollments 

6,619 7,497 14,116 Total Number of 
Enrollments 

6,338 7,447 13,785 

Percent of Enrollments 
by Gender 

46.9% 53.1% 100% Percent of Enrollments 
by Gender 

46.0% 54.0% 100% 

Difference between the 
percent of athletes and 
the percent of students 
enrolled 

9.9% -9.9%  Difference between the 
percent of athletes and 
the percent of students 
enrolled 

11.1% -11.1%  

 
Proportionality of Participation 
Based on the table, is the percentage of female athletes greater than (or at least within 5 percentage 
points of) the percent of female students enrolled? 2018-19: No 2019-20: No 
 
Based on the participation rates of female athletes compared to female enrollments and based on the 
college’s athletic program assessment as presented in the EADA Survey Federal Report, check at least 
one component below for assuring the institution is in compliance with Title IX, Gender Equity in 
Athletics. 
 

 ☒   Accommodation of interests and abilities 

 ☐   Substantial proportionality 

 ☒   History and practice of expansion of sports 
 

Corrective Action Plan  
If the program is not in compliance, complete the Corrective Action Plan below and specify or update 
the plan to achieve compliance. Include completion dates for each method and strategy. 
  



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

29 
 

Gender Equity in 
Athletics 
Component 

Planned Actions to Address 
Deficiencies Found in Athletics 

Responsible Person(s) and 
Contact Information 

Timelines  

Athletic 
Participation by 
Gender Compared 
to Student 
Enrollments 

Cross country provides the best 
opportunity for growth in female 
participation.  
 
The department corresponded via 
email with all athletic directors at 
high schools in the northern half of 
the state and Panhandle, expressing 
a need for female participants. A 
digital recruiting brochure was 
created to accompany recruiting 
efforts.  
 
A Cross Country Visit Day to TCC was 
scheduled and promoted to schools 
attending the FHSAA Cross Country 
Championships. However, due to a 
November tropical storm the event 
schedule was altered which impacted 
team travel to Tallahassee and 
prohibited us from hosting the event. 
 
A virtual event is being planned for 
Spring 2021, and an on-campus 
event will be planned for Fall 2021, 
provided the cross country 
championships run on time. 
 
As the NJCAA sanctions additional 
sports, such as flag football, we will 
continue to research the feasibility of 
adding opportunities for female 
participants. 
 
It should also be noted that due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic which shut 
down the spring sports season, there 
were additional women’s track 
participants who were not able to 
participate and be counted.  

Rob Chaney 
chaneyr@tcc.fl.edu 
850-201-6085 

Spring 2021 – 
virtual 
recruitment 
event is 
scheduled for 
April 2021. 
 
Fall 2021 – will 
hold 
recruitment 
event in 
concert with 
FSU XC 
Invitational 
and/or FHSAA 
Championships. 

 

 

  



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

30 
 

 

 

Review of Part VI: Gender Equity in Athletics 
(Completed by Division of Florida Colleges) 

Requirement  Response Comments  Action 

Does the report include the Equity in 
Athletic Disclosure Act (EADA) Survey 
Federal Report for 2020? 

Select one.   

Does the equity report reflect updates 
or new information related to: sports 
offerings; participation, availability of 
facilities; scholarship offerings; funds 
allocated for administration, 
recruitment, comparable coaching, 
publicity and promotions, or other 
considerations by the college to 
continue efforts to achieve gender 
equity? 

Select one.   

Is the percentage of female athletes 
greater than (or at least within five 
percentage points of) the percent of 
female students enrolled? 

Select one.   

Does the report include any of the 
following to ensure compliance with 
Title IX?  

Select one.   

Accommodation of interests and 
abilities 

Select one.   

Substantial proportionality Select one.   

History and practice of expansion of 
sports 

Select one.   

If there were any disparities in sections 
A or B, or if the percentage of female 
participants was not substantially 
proportionate to the percentage of 
female enrollments, did the college 
submit a corrective action plan?  

Select one.   

 

 



31 
 

Part VII. Signature Page 

 

FLORIDA EDUCATIONAL EQUITY ACT 
2020-21 Annual EQUITY UPDATE REPORT 

Signature Page 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The college ensures that section 1000.05, F.S., section 1006.71, F.S., and section 1012.86, F.S., and 
implementing Rules 6A-6A-10.041 and 6A-19.001-.010, F.A.C., referenced in this report, are properly 
implemented and that this institution prohibits discrimination against students, applicants for 
admission, employees or applicants for employment on the basis of race, color, ethnicity, national 
origin, gender, pregnancy, disability, age or marital status.  
 
The college has developed policies and procedures for providing reasonable substitutions for admission, 
graduation, study program admission and upper-division entry for eligible students with disabilities as 
required by section 1007.264 and section 1007.465, F.S., and for implementing Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973.  
 
The institution is in compliance with the identified components of the athletic programs, as required by 
Title IX, the Florida Educational Equity Act, section 1006.71, F.S., Gender equity in intercollegiate 
athletics and, where not compliant, the college has implemented a corrective action plan. (Applicable 
for institutions with athletic programs.) 
 
The college actively implements and monitors the Employment Equity Accountability Plan and certifies 
compliance with all statutory requirements of section 1012.86, F.S. 

 
 

Renae Tolson, Equity Officer Date 
 
 

Jim Murdaugh, Ph.D., President Date 
 
 

Frank Messersmith, Chair, College Board Of Trustees Date 

 

Tallahassee Community College 



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

32 
 

This concludes the 2020-21 Annual Equity Update Report, which must be submitted, as a Word 

document, to FCSInfo@fldoe.org by April 30, 2021. Colleges may attach additional files (PDF or Word) 

as appendices.  

  



College Annual Equity Update  

2020-21 Template 

 

  

 
 

33 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 1/20

2020 EADA Survey
Institution: Tallahassee Community College (137759) User ID: Laura

Screening Questions
Please answer these questions carefully as your responses will determine which subsequent data
entry screens are appropriate for your institution.

1. How will you report Operating (Game-day) Expenses?

  By Team Per
Participant

2. Select the type of varsity sports teams at your institution.

  Men's Teams

  Women's
Teams

  Coed Teams

3. Do any of your teams have assistant coaches?

  Yes

  Men's Teams  

  Women's
Teams

 

  Coed Teams  

  No

 

If you save the data on this screen, then return to the screen to make changes, note the
following:

1) If you select an additional type of team remember to include associated data for that
type of team on subsequent screens;

2) If you delete a type of team but have already entered associated data on other
screens, all associated data for that type of team will be deleted from subsequent
screens. However, because the survey system has to recalculate the totals, you must
re-save every screen.



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 2/20

Sports Selection - Men's and Women's Teams

Select the varsity sports teams at your institution.

  Sport Men's Women's Sport Men's Women's

  Archery Badminton

  Baseball   Basketball

  Beach Volleyball Bowling

  Cross Country Diving

  Equestrian Fencing

  Field Hockey   Football  

  Golf Gymnastics

  Ice Hockey Lacrosse

  Rifle Rodeo

  Rowing Sailing

  Skiing Soccer

  Softball   Squash

  Swimming Swimming and
Diving (combined)

  Synchronized
Swimming

  Table Tennis

  Team Handball Tennis

  Track and Field
(Indoor)

Track and Field
(Outdoor)

  Track and Field
and Cross
Country
(combined)

Volleyball

  Water Polo Weight Lifting



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 3/20

  Wrestling Other Sports
(Specify sports in
the caveat box.)*

 

Caveat: 
The caveat on this screen is for internal use and does not appear on the EADA
Dissemination Website (public site). If you want information to appear on the public
site, enter it on the Athletic Participation screen.

* If you indicated in the caveat box that your other sports are Dancing and/or
Cheerleading, please specify in the caveat box that these are competitive varsity teams
(i.e., not pep squads).

 

If you save the data on this screen, then return to the screen to make changes, note the
following:

1) If you select an additional team remember to include associated data for that sport on
subsequent screens;

2) If you delete a sport but have already entered associated data on other screens, all
associated data for that sport will be deleted from subsequent screens. However,
because the survey system has to recalculate the totals, you must re-save every
screen.



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 4/20

Athletics Participation - Men's and Women's Teams

Enter the number of participants as of the day of the first scheduled contest.

Varsity Teams Men's Teams Women's Teams

Baseball 26

Basketball 13 11

Softball 16

Track and Field and Cross Country (combined) 17 15

          Track and Field (Indoor) 0 0

          Track and Field (Outdoor) 10 9

          Cross Country 7 6

Total Participants Men's and Women's Teams 56 42

Unduplicated Count of Participants 
(This is a head count. If an individual
participates on more than one team, count that
individual only once on this line.)

53 38

CAVEAT 
(For each men's or women's team that includes opposite sex participants, specify the
number of male and the number of female students on that team in this caveat box.
This does not apply for coed teams. Additionally, provide any other clarifying
information here.)

Three male and three females who participated in cross country also 
participated in track and field (outdoor). One female who participated in 
basketball also participated in track and field (outdoor).



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 5/20

If you save the data on this screen, then return to the screen to make changes, please
note you must re-save every screen because the survey system has to recalculate the
totals.



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 6/20

Head Coaches - Men's Teams

For each men's team, indicate whether the head coach is male or female, was assigned
to the team on a full-time or part-time basis, and whether the coach was employed by
the institution on a full-time basis or on a part-time or volunteer basis, by entering a 1 in
the appropriate field.
The Swimming and Diving (combined) fields allow up to 2 head coaches. The Track and
Field and Cross Country (combined) fields allow up to 3.

  Male Head Coaches Female Head Coaches  

Varsity
Teams

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Full-
Time
Basis

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Part-
Time
Basis

 
 

Full-
Time

Institution
Employee

Part-
Time

Institution
Employee

or
Volunteer

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Full-
Time
Basis

Assigned
to Team

on a
Part-
Time
Basis

 
 

Full-
Time

Institution
Employee

Part-
Time

Institution
Employee

or
Volunteer

 
 

Total
Head

Coaches

Baseball 1 1 1

Basketball 1 1 1

Track and
Field and
Cross
Country
(combined)

1 1 1

Coaching
Position
Totals

2 1 2 1 0 0 0 0 3

CAVEAT

The same individual is the head coach for both cross country and track and 
field.



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 7/20

Head Coaches - Women's Teams

For each women's team, indicate whether the head coach is male or female, was
assigned to the team on a full-time or part-time basis, and whether the coach was
employed by the institution on a full-time basis or on a part-time or volunteer basis, by
entering a 1 in the appropriate field.
The Swimming and Diving (combined) fields allow up to 2 head coaches. The Track and
Field and Cross Country (combined) fields allow up to 3.

  Male Head Coaches Female Head Coaches  

Varsity
Teams

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Full-
Time
Basis

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Part-
Time
Basis

 
 

Full-
Time

Institution
Employee

Part-
Time

Institution
Employee

or
Volunteer

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Full-
Time
Basis

Assigned
to Team

on a
Part-
Time
Basis

 
 

Full-
Time

Institution
Employee

Part-
Time

Institution
Employee

or
Volunteer

 
 

Total
Head

Coaches

Basketball 1 1 1

Softball 1 1 1

Track and
Field and
Cross
Country
(combined)

1 1 1

Coaching
Position
Totals

1 1 1 1 1 0 1 0 3

CAVEAT

The same individual is the head coach for both cross country and track and 
field.



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 8/20

Head Coaches' Salaries - Men's and Women's Teams

Enter only salaries and bonuses that your institution pays head coaches as
compensation for coaching. Do not include benefits on this screen.
Do not include volunteer coaches in calculating the average salary and the Full-Time
Equivalent (FTE) Total.
For help calculating the FTE total click on the Instructions link on this screen.

  Men's Teams Women's
Teams

Average Annual Institutional Salary per Head Coaching
Position  
(for coaching duties only)

37,892 35,502

Number of Head Coaching Positions Used to Calculate
the Average 3 3

Number of Volunteer Head Coaching Positions  
(Do not include these coaches in your salary or FTE
calculations.)

0 0

Average Annual Institutional Salary per Full-time
equivalent (FTE) 53,621 50,239

Sum of Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Positions Used to
Calculate the Average 2.12 2.12

CAVEAT



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 9/20

Assistant Coaches - Men's Teams

For each men's team, indicate whether the assistant coach is male or female, was
assigned to the team on a full-time or part-time basis, and whether the coach was
employed by the institution on a full-time basis or on a part-time or volunteer basis, by
entering a 1 in the appropriate field.

  Male Assistant Coaches Female Assistant Coaches  

Varsity
Teams

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Full-

Time
Basis

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Part-
Time
Basis

 
 

Full-
Time

Institution
Employee

Part-
Time

Institution
Employee

or
Volunteer

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Full-

Time
Basis

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Part-
Time
Basis

 
 

Full-
Time

Institution
Employee

Part-
Time

Institution
Employee

or
Volunteer

 
 

Total
Assistant
Coaches

Baseball 0 4 0 4 4

Basketball 0 3 0 3 3

Track and
Field and
Cross
Country
(combined)

0 0 0 0 1 1 1

Coaching
Position
Totals

0 7 0 7 0 1 0 1 8

CAVEAT



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 10/20

Assistant Coaches - Women's Teams

For each women's team, indicate whether the assistant coach is male or female, was assigned to the team
on a full-time or part-time basis, and whether the coach was employed by the institution on a full-time basis
or on a part-time or volunteer basis, by entering a 1 in the appropriate field.

  Male Assistant Coaches Female Assistant Coaches  

Varsity
Teams

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Full-

Time
Basis

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Part-
Time
Basis

 
 

Full-
Time

Institution
Employee

Part-
Time

Institution
Employee

or
Volunteer

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Full-

Time
Basis

Assigned
to Team

on a 
Part-
Time
Basis

 
 

Full-
Time

Institution
Employee

Part-
Time

Institution
Employee

or
Volunteer

 
 

Total
Assistant
Coaches

Basketball 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 2

Softball 0 2 0 2 2

Track and
Field and
Cross
Country
(combined)

1 1 1

Coaching
Position
Totals

0 1 0 1 0 4 0 4 5

CAVEAT



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 11/20

Assistant Coaches' Salaries - Men's and Women's Teams

Enter only salaries and bonuses that your institution pays assistant coaches as
compensation for coaching. Do not include benefits on this screen.
Do not include volunteer coaches in calculating the average salary and the Full-Time
Equivalent (FTE) Total.
For help calculating the FTE total click on the Instructions link on this screen. 

  Men's Teams Women's
Teams

Average Annual Institutional Salary per Assistant
Coaching Position 
(for coaching duties only)

8,667 9,200

Number of Assistant Coaching Positions Used to
Calculate the Average 6 5

Number of Volunteer Assistant Coaching Positions  
(Do not include these coaches in your salary or FTE
calculations.)

2 0

Average Annual Institutional Salary per Full-time
equivalent (FTE) 25,122 24,599

Sum of Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Positions Used to
Calculate the Average 2.07 1.87

CAVEAT



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 12/20

Athletically Related Student Aid - Men's and Women's Teams

Athletically related student aid is any scholarship, grant, or other form of financial
assistance, offered by an institution, the terms of which require the recipient to
participate in a program of intercollegiate athletics at the institution.  Other student aid,
of which a student-athlete simply happens to be the recipient, is not athletically related
student aid.  If you do not have any aid to report, enter a 0.

  Men's Teams Women's Teams Total

Amount of Aid 542,147 476,899 1,019,046

Ratio (percent) 53 47 100%

CAVEAT



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 13/20

Recruiting Expenses - Men's and Women's Teams

Recruiting expenses are all expenses an institution incurs attributable to recruiting activities.  This includes, but is not
limited to, expenses for lodging, meals, telephone use, and transportation (including vehicles used for recruiting
purposes) for both recruits and personnel engaged in recruiting, and other expenses for official and unofficial visits,
and all other expenses related to recruiting.  If you do not have any recruiting expenses to report, enter a 0.

  Men's Teams Women's Teams Total

Total 2,130 1,850 3,980

CAVEAT



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 14/20

Operating (Game-Day) Expenses - Men's and Women's Teams by
Team

Operating expenses are all expenses an institution incurs attributable to home, away, and neutral-site intercollegiate
athletic contests (commonly known as "game-day expenses"), for (A) Lodging, meals, transportation, uniforms, and
equipment for coaches, team members, support staff (including, but not limited to team managers and trainers), and
others; and (B) Officials.
For a sport with a men's team and a women's team that have a combined budget, click here for special instructions.
Report actual numbers, not budgeted or estimated numbers. Please do not round beyond the next dollar.

  Men's Teams Women's Teams  

Varsity
Teams

Participants Operating
Expenses

per
Participant

By Team Participants Operating
Expenses

per
Participant

By Team Total
Operating
Expenses

Basketball 13 7,077 92,001 11 3,319 36,507 128,508

Baseball 26 1,803 46,885 46,885

Softball 16 2,190 35,042 35,042

Track and
Field and
Cross
Country
(combined)

17 740 12,580 15 740 11,100 23,680

Total
Operating
Expenses
Men's and
Women's
Teams

56   151,466 42   82,649 234,115

CAVEAT

Men's basketball, men's and women's cross country/track includes postseason travel.



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 15/20

Note: This screen is for game-day expenses only.



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 16/20

Total Expenses - Men's and Women's Teams

Enter all expenses attributable to intercollegiate athletic activities. This includes appearance guarantees and options,
athletically related student aid, contract services, equipment, fundraising activities, operating expenses, promotional
activities, recruiting expenses, salaries and benefits, supplies, travel, and any other expenses attributable to
intercollegiate athletic activities.
Report actual numbers, not budgeted or estimated numbers. Please do not round beyond the next dollar.

Varsity Teams Men's Teams Women's Teams Total

Basketball 524,038 369,760 893,798

Baseball 387,281 387,281

Softball 384,234 384,234

Track and Field and Cross Country (combined) 18,580 17,432 36,012

Total Expenses of all Sports, Except Football and
Basketball, Combined 405,861 401,666 807,527

Total Expenses Men's and Women's Teams 929,899 771,426 1,701,325

Not Allocated by Gender/Sport (Expenses not attributable
to a particular sport or sports)

    239,018

Grand Total Expenses     1,940,343

CAVEAT



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 17/20

Total Revenues - Men's and Women's Teams

Your total revenues must cover your total expenses.
Enter all revenues attributable to intercollegiate athletic activities. This includes revenues from appearance
guarantees and options, an athletic conference, tournament or bowl games, concessions, contributions from alumni
and others, institutional support, program advertising and sales, radio and television, royalties, signage and other
sponsorships, sport camps, state or other government support, student activity fees, ticket and luxury box sales, and
any other revenues attributable to intercollegiate athletic activities.
Report actual numbers, not budgeted or estimated numbers. Please do not round beyond the next dollar.

Varsity Teams Men's Teams Women's Teams Total

Basketball 524,038 369,760 893,798

Baseball 387,281 387,281

Softball 384,234 384,234

Track and Field and Cross Country (combined) 18,580 17,432 36,012

Total Revenues of all Sports, Except Football and
Basketball, Combined 405,861 401,666 807,527

Total Revenues Men's and Women's Teams 929,899 771,426 1,701,325

Not Allocated by Gender/Sport (Revenues not attributable
to a particular sport or sports)

    239,018

Grand Total for all Teams (includes by team and not
allocated by gender/sport)

    1,940,343

CAVEAT



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 18/20

Summary - Men's and Women's Teams

Your Grand Total Revenues must be equal to or greater than your Grand
Total Expenses or you will not be able to lock your survey.

    Men's Teams Women's
Teams

Total

1 Total of Head Coaches' Salaries 113,676 106,506 220,182

2 Total of Assistant Coaches' Salaries 52,002 46,000 98,002

3 Total Salaries (Lines 1+2) 165,678 152,506 318,184

4 Athletically Related Student Aid 542,147 476,899 1,019,046

5 Recruiting Expenses 2,130 1,850 3,980

6 Operating (Game-Day) Expenses 151,466 82,649 234,115

7 Summary of Subset Expenses (Lines

3+4+5+6)

861,421 713,904 1,575,325

8 Total Expenses for Teams 929,899 771,426 1,701,325

9 Total Expenses for Teams Minus Subset

Expenses (Line 8 – Line 7)

68,478 57,522 126,000

10 Not Allocated Expenses 239,018

11 Grand Total Expenses (Lines 8+10) 1,940,343

12 Total Revenues for Teams 929,899 771,426 1,701,325

13 Not Allocated Revenues 239,018

14 Grand Total Revenues (Lines 12+13) 1,940,343



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 19/20

15 Total Revenues for Teams minus Total

Expenses for Teams (Line 12-Line 8)

0 0 0

16 Grand Total Revenues Minus Grand Total Expenses (Line 14- Line 11) 0

To return to a data entry screen, click on the link in the Navigation Menu. 
To proceed to the Supplemental Information screen, click on the link in the Navigation
Menu or click on the “Next” button on this screen.

 



2/9/2021 2020 EADA Survey

https://surveys.ope.ed.gov/athletics/#/read-only-survey/137759/all 20/20

Supplemental Information (optional)

This screen may be used to help the reader better understand the data you
have provided, or to help a prospective student-athlete make an informed
choice of an athletics program. 
This information will be viewable on the EADA public website. Please do not
include the names of individuals or write messages to the help desk. 
To explain specific data entered on a previous screen, please use the caveat
box on that screen.


